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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL
Environmental” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we” or “our”), | present the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
(the “Year”).

According to the data published by China’s National Bureau of
Statistics, China’s gross domestic product for 2022 was
RMB121.0 trillion', representing a 3.0% increase over last year.
Despite the ongoing impact of COVID-19 on China’s economy in
2022, the nation’s economy experienced an organised recovery
this year, establishing a strong basis for further economic
recuperation in 2023. This was achieved through the efficient
implementation of targeted policies and measures, with the full
cooperation of all regions and departments nationwide, and the
successful containment of the epidemic. In recent years, China
has made significant efforts to advance its environmental
protection industry. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics, investment in water conservancy, environment and
public facilities management increased by 10.3%2 in 2022
compared to the same period in the previous year. In October
2022, China’s Ministry of Ecology and Environment released a
report on national surface water and ambient air quality for
January to September 2022, and among the 3,641 national
surface water assessment sections, the proportion of sections
with excellent water quality (Grade I~Ill) reached 86.3%3,
representing an increase of 4.5% compared to the same period
in the previous year. For the seven major river basins,
Northwestern Rivers, Southwestern Rivers and rivers in Zhejiang
and Fujian Provinces, the proportion of sections with excellent
water quality (Grade I~Ill) reached 88.5%83, representing an
increase of 4.8% compared to the same period in the previous
year. This highlights the Chinese government’s unwavering
dedication to addressing environmental issues, including
wastewater management, even amidst economic challenges and

Notes:
1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202301/t20230117_1892179.html|
2. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202301/t20230117_1892089.html

3. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202210/t20221024_997602.shtml
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1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202301/
t20230117_1892179.html

2. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202301/
t20230117_1892089.html

3. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/
xwfb/202210/t20221024_997602.shtml
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBE

efforts to revive the economy. The Chinese government has also
established distinct guidelines and specific targets for the
Yangtze River and Yellow River, which are two crucial rivers in
the country. In August 2022, 17 departments and units,
including the Ministry of Ecology and Environment, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development, and the Ministry of Water
Resources, jointly issued the Action Plan for Deepening the
Battle for the Protection and Restoration of the Yangtze River*
(ORAIT I RITREEEREEHITENHZE) ), which proposed
a number of major targets to be achieved by the end of 2025,
focusing on the Yangtze River and its surrounding areas,
including maintaining the water quality of Yangtze River Basin at
an excellent level, maintaining the water quality of the main
stream at “Grade II”, tackling and eliminating the problem of
mixing and misconnecting sewage networks in cities at the
prefecture level and above; and improving the centralised
collection rate of urban domestic sewage to more than 70%, or
more than 5 percentage points higher than that of 2020. In
addition, navigation-restricted and prohibited areas shall be
designated in important aquatic habitats of the Yangtze River,
aquatic biological monitoring system should be established for
the Yangtze River, and the closed fishing areas should be
regulated, in order to achieve restorative growth for the aquatic
biological resources in the Yangtze River. As for the Yellow
River, another major river in our country, 12 departments
including the Ministry of Ecology and Environment jointly issued
the Action Plan for Protecting and Managing the Ecology of the
Yellow Rivers ((FE /A REBREREHNREITEFTE)) in the
second half of 2022, with the primary objective to improve the
pollution control and water quality of the Yellow River, while also
striving for continuous and steady improvement in the
ecosystem quality of the Yellow River basin. The actual target is
that by 2025, the water quality in the upper and middle reaches
of the mainstream of the Yellow River should reach Grade Il, the
elimination rate of black and odorous water bodies in the built-
up areas of county-level cities should reach more than 90%,
and no less than 90% of the drinking water in cities at county
level and above should have the water quality of Class Il or
above. The Yellow River basin covers nine provinces and
regions, including Shanxi, Inner Mongolia, Henan and
Shandong. The primary focus of action should be directed
towards the ecology of the main tributaries, main streams, and
significant lakes and reservoirs within the basin. Moving forward,
the Group plans to remain updated on the most current national

Notes:
4. https://huanbao.bjx.com.cn/news/20220919/1255837.shtml

(5% https://huanbao.bjx.com.cn/news/20220901/1252348.shtml
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and regional policies and actively collaborate to make a
contribution towards national environmental governance efforts.

As the comprehensive implementation of environmental
policies in China presents growth opportunities, the Group is
also proactively addressing challenges in the environmental
industry abroad. To improve our competitiveness in overseas
markets, the Group currently focuses on two overseas projects,
including the development of biofuel pellet business in Jambi,
Indonesia and the development of a power supply project in
Bangka, Indonesia. The biofuel pellets business has been put
into production and generated revenue since 2021. Construction
is currently underway for the Bangka power plant project in
Indonesia. The Group has entered into an agreement with PLN
to supply electricity to its national grid at a fixed price for a
period of 25 years from 2023.

Other than the above two overseas key projects, the Group has
been endeavouring to explore opportunities to communicate
with other power generation plants and companies to seek
for more cooperation. The Group expects to develop more
environmental protection businesses in the future, continue
researching for the development opportunities of other new
energy businesses in the environmental protection industry,
thereby stabilising the Group’s business foundation and allowing
the Group to achieve diversified business and sustainable
development. In terms of the Group’s domestic businesses,
the Group will continue to enhance its operation efficiency by
strictly controlling cost and improving operational process,
so as to further enhance the profitability of the wastewater
treatment business. The management will continue to align with
national policies, guiding the Group towards a pathway of good
development.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, ELL Environmental
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$203.6 million with a
year-on-year increase of 97.5%. The gross profit for the Year
was HK$60.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
12.9%. The net loss was HK$2.2 million.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBE

Despite the recurrence of COVID-19 outbreaks in 2022 and
uncertainties in the global economic landscape, the Group
remains committed to upholding its established operational
principles and proactively addressing market challenges. On
one hand, we will continuously optimise the management of
existing projects to bring stable growth for the Group. On the
other hand, we will keep a close eye on market changes and
actively cooperate with the latest national and regional policies
to maintain the steady development of the wastewater treatment
business in China to provide clean water for the whole country.
In addition, the Group will explore appropriate and promising
opportunities to extend its environmental philosophy overseas
and contribute to global sustainable development by expanding
its range of diverse environmental businesses.

Here, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors,
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), staff and
stakeholders for their constant support. Thanks to the tireless
dedication of the management and all staff, as well as the
support from our customers and partners, ELL Environmental
has been able to overcome various obstacles in such a
challenging business environment in recent years. The Group
will continuously maintain its high-quality service level and close
relationship with customers, with the aim to contribute to the
society and environment, as well as create value and generate
long-term stable returns for our investors and the Shareholders.

CHAU On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to external factors such as international geopolitical
changes and the outbreak of Omicron, a variant of the
COVID-19, coupled with internal factors such as the downturn in
the domestic real estate market, China’s overall economic
growth was under pressure in 2022. However, with the support
of the Chinese government’s various “economy stabilisation”
policies, the economy grew steadily throughout the Year,
demonstrating the resilience of the China’s economy. According
to the data published by the National Bureau of Statistics,
China’s gross domestic product for 2022 was RMB121.0 trillion?,
representing a 3.0% growth over 2021.

In recent years, the Chinese government has taken a proactive
approach to water pollution issues. The Chinese government
has established distinct guidelines and specific targets for the
two major rivers in China that cover vast areas, the Yangtze
River and the Yellow River, in order to create a more
comprehensive wastewater treatment system and improve water
quality. In August 2022, 17 departments and units, including the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment, the National Development
and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development and the Ministry of Water Resources,
jointly issued the Action Plan for Deepening the Protection and
Restoration of the Yangtze River (CF AT i R ILIR & (& 18 R ER
B 17E) 77 &) )?, which proposed a number of major targets to
be achieved by the end of 2025 focusing on the Yangtze River
and its surrounding areas, which include maintaining the water
quality in the Yangtze River basin at an excellent level,
maintaining the water quality of the mainstream of Yangtze River
at Grade I, tackling and eliminating the problem of mixing and
misconnecting sewage networks in cities at the prefecture level
and above, and improving the centralised collection rate of
urban domestic sewage to more than 70% or more than five
percentage points higher than that of 2020. In addition,
navigation-restricted and prohibited areas should be designated
in important aquatic habitats of the Yangtze River, aquatic
biological monitoring system should be established for the
Yangtze River, and the closed fishing areas should be regulated,
in order to achieve restorative growth for the aquatic biological

Notes:
1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202302/t20230203_1901718.html

2. https://huanbao.bjx.com.cn/news/20220919/1255837.shtml
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1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202302/
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

resources in the Yangtze River. As for the Yellow River, another
major river in China, 12 departments, including the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment, jointly issued the Action Plan for
Protecting and Managing the Ecology of the Yellow River” (&1
FERRERBEWEREITEISFTZE))® in the second half of 2022,
with the primary objective to improve the pollution control and
water quality of the Yellow River, while also striving for
continuous and steady improvement in the ecosystem quality of
the Yellow River basin. The actual target is that by 2025, the
water quality in the upper and middle reaches of the mainstream
of the Yellow River should reach Grade ll, the elimination rate of
black and odorous water bodies in the built-up areas of county-
level cities should reach more than 90%, and no less than 90%
of the drinking water in cities at county level and above should
have the water quality of Grade Il or above. The Yellow River
basin covers nine provincial regions including Shanxi, Inner
Mongolia, Henan and Shandong, with the focus of action should
be directed towards the ecology of the main tributaries,
mainstream and important lakes and reservoirs. It is apparent
that China and various departments pay high attention to the
water quality of the Yangtze River and the Yellow River, and are
committed to implementing a series of measures to achieve the
relevant targets. According to the national surface water
environment quality status announced by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment in October 2022, from January to September
this Year, among the 3,641 national surface water assessment
sections, the proportion of sections with excellent water quality
(Grade I-1ll) reached 86.3%*, which was 4.5% higher than that of
the same period of 2021, and the proportion of inferior sections
with Grade V was 0.9%, which was 0.3% lower than that of the
same period of 2021. In the future, it is expected that more
manpower and funds will be devoted by China in dealing with
water quality issues, and the relevant index will continue to
improve steadily.

Overall, the Group has been committed to prudently operating
its existing businesses and exploring the potential of other
environmental protection businesses in the past. Earlier, the
Group sold the relevant interests in Haian Hengfa Wasterwater
Treatment Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”), and no longer
held a wastewater treatment facility operated by it, with the

Note:
3. https://huanbao.bjx.com.cn/news/20220901/1252348.shtml

4. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202210/t120221024_997602.shtml
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Management Discussion and Analysis

relevant resources to be reallocated to the wastewater treatment
facilities operated by Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment Company
Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”) and the power plant project in
Bangka, Indonesia (the “Bangka Project”). After the disposal
of Haian Hengfa, the Group will mainly operate the wastewater
treatment facilities of Rugao Hengfa in China. In July 2021,
the Group reached an agreement with the local administrative
committee, increasing water tariffs from RMB2.67 per tonne
to RMB3.43 per tonne, contributing to a more robust result for
the Group. With the increase in water tariffs and improvement
in project efficiency, the management expects that the revenue
and gross profit of the Group will further increase.

The Group has also been actively preparing for the development
of suitable environmental protection projects in overseas and
two key projects are currently being developed. Among which,
the Bangka Project is still under construction but has reached
a consensus regarding the electricity selling plan with the local
government and entered into the power supply agreement
with PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) (also known as
State Electricity Company), an Indonesian government-owned
corporation, and is expected to supply power to the national
grid at a fixed price for 25 years since 2023. If the Bangka
Project turns out to be a success, we expect that the relevant
operation model can be replicated in other outlying islands in
Indonesia. Moreover, we will also continue our study on the
feasibility of developing other new energy investment projects
in other regions of Indonesia, while actively promoting the
“Build-Operate-Transfer” or “BOT” investment projects in order
to generate greater value for the Group and bring better cash
flows and investment return.

As for the biofuel pellet business in Indonesia, the Group has
been actively expanding such business and continuing to
explore opportunities to cooperate with other power plants,
thereby promoting and developing the biofuel pellet business.
The Group’s biofuel pellet business in Indonesia commenced
its wood pellet production business in 2021 and has been
generating revenue. With the development of biofuel pellet
business, the management is confident that the biofuel pellet
business will provide growth momentum for the Group and
enable the Group to achieve diversification of its environmental
businesses in the future.

OUTLOOK

Despite the growth of the national economy has slowed down
due to various internal and external negative factors, the
Group will continue to respond to challenges calmly, actively
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manage existing projects, and strive for excellence. The Group
will continue cooperating with the latest national and regional
policies, continue solidifying our strong foundation in China’s
wastewater treatment market and providing high-quality services
to customers, creating a pristine water quality domestically.
The Group will also continue to respond to market changes
flexibly, proactively seek suitable opportunities with potential for
development, capture and create more business opportunities,
develop global diversified environmental businesses, and strive
to be consistent, in order to further contribute to environmental
protection while promoting the growth of the Group’s business.
The Group adheres to its consistent philosophy of providing
customers with excellent service quality, with a view to jointly
build a better future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue increased by HK$100.5 million or 97.5% to
HK$203.6 million for FY2022 as compared to HK$103.1 million
for FY2021. Such increase was primarily attributable to (i) the
increase in construction revenue arising from the construction
works of the Bangka Project during FY2022, and (ii) the increase
in sales of biofuel in Indonesia during FY2022 as compared to
FY2021.

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales increased by HK$93.6 million or 189.1%
from HK$49.5 million for FY2021 to HK$143.1 million for
FY2022, primarily due to (i) the increase in construction costs
arising from the Bangka Project during FY2022 as compared to
FY2021, and (ii) the increase in the cost of biofuel in Indonesia
during FY2022 as compared to FY2021.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by HK$7.0 million or 12.9% from
HK$53.6 million for FY2021 to HK$60.6 million for FY2022,
primarily due to the reasons of the aforementioned fluctuation
in revenue and cost of sales. Our gross profit margin decreased
from 52.0% for FY2021 to 29.7% for FY2022.
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OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

Our other income and net gains increased slightly by HK$0.5
million or 10.9% from HK$4.5 million for FY2021 to HK$4.9
million for FY2022, primarily due to the foreign exchange gain.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses increased by HK$3.0 million or
10.9% from HK$27.5 million for FY2021 to HK$30.5 million for
FY2022. Administrative expenses mainly include staff costs and
other operating expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by HK$4.9 million or 110.9%
from HK$4.4 million for FY2021 to HK$9.3 million for FY2022,
primarily due to the increase in loan borrowing for the financing
of the Bangka Project during FY2022.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax decreased by HK$8.9 million or 38.7%
from HK$22.9 million for FY2021 to HK$14.0 million for FY2022,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense increased by HK$4.8 million or 42.5%
from HK$11.4 million for FY2021 to HK$16.2 million for FY2022,
mainly due to withholding tax incurred from the disposal of a
subsidiary.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by HK$9.4 million or 153.6% from profit of HK$6.1 million for
FY2021 to loss of HK$3.3 million for FY2022, primarily due to
the factors mentioned above.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate
to investments in our projects, construction and upgrading of
our wastewater treatment facilities, purchases of equipment
as well as costs and expenses related to the operation and
maintenance of our wastewater treatment and electricity
generating facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances and cash
was HK$34.6 million, representing a decrease of 46.8% as
compared with that of HK$65.1 million as at 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances and cash
of HK$13.0 million, HK$1.8 million, HK$0.9 million and HK$18.9
million were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) and United States
Dollars (“US$”), respectively (31 December 2021: HK$35.8
million, HK$4.9 million, HK$7.7 million and HK$16.7 million were
denominated in RMB, HKS$, IDR and US$, respectively).

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the total amount of our utilised bank
borrowings was HK$38.0 million, of which HK$18.0 million
was repayable on demand and HK$20.0 million was repayable
within 2 to 5 years. All HK$38.0 million of the outstanding bank
borrowings were denominated in HK$ (31 December 2021:
HK$18.0 million and HK$2.2 million were denominated in HK$
and US$, respectively). Out of the HK$38.0 million outstanding
bank borrowings, HK$18.0 million bore a floating interest rate
of 1.4% per annum over the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
and HK$20.0 million bore a fixed interest rate of 2% below Hong
Kong Dollar prime rate (31 December 2021: HK$18.0 million
bore a floating interest rate of 1.4% per annum over the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and HK$2.2 million bore a floating
interest rate of 1.4% per annum over London Interbank Offered
Rate). We had HK$4.7 million unutilised banking facilities as at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$7.3 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had an outstanding
borrowing from independent third parties of the Group
amounted to HK$23.9 million (31 December 2021: HK$14.9
million), which bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The
loan was repayable within one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had outstanding
amounts due to related parties of the Group amounted to
HK$105.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$39.2 million), of which
HK$82.0 million bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and
HK$23.5 million bore a fixed interest rate of 6% per annum. Out
of the HK$105.5 million outstanding amounts due to related
parties, HK$90.9 million was repayable within one year and
HK$14.6 million was repayable within two to five years. To the
best knowledge of the Directors and management of the Group,
all the interest rates of the above borrowings were determined
on arm’s length basis.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total
equity and then multiplied by 100%, and total debt includes
the interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related
parties and other borrowings. Our gearing ratio increased from
19.4% as at 31 December 2021 to 55.3% as at 31 December
2022.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any charge on
assets (31 December 2021: nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the Year. The Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time. Surplus cash will be invested appropriately so that the
Group’s cash requirements for its strategy or direction from time
to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures for
construction for our Bangka Project. During the Year, our capital
expenditures amounted to HK$106.1 million (31 December 2021:
HK$24.2 million), which were funded by our financing activities.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Individual member companies in Mainland China and Indonesia
within our Group have limited foreign currency risk as most
of the transactions are denominated in the same currency as
the functional currency of the operations in which they relate.
However, as these principal subsidiaries mainly carry assets and
liabilities in RMB and IDR, any appreciation or depreciation of
HK$ against RMB and IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated
financial position which is presented in HK$, and will be
reflected in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
Group minimises foreign exchange exposure by converting its
cash and cash equivalents in other currencies generated from
the operation of its foreign operating subsidiaries to HK$.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 185 employees (31
December 2021: 122 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.6
million for FY2022 (FY2021: HK$14.7 million). The remuneration
policy for our Directors, senior management members and
general staff is based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the profit performance of
our Group and the individual performance of our Directors,
senior management members and general staff. The Group
encourages the self-development of its employees and provides
on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible directors and employees of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 21 July 2022, Everbest Water Treatment Development
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as the seller (the “Seller”), and CGN Environmental
Protection Industry Co., Ltd. (FEZIRRE X B R QA as the
purchaser (the “Purchaser”), entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Seller agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to
acquire, 70% of the issued share capital of Haian Hengfa (the
“Target Company”), at the total consideration of approximately
RMB68.2 million (inclusive of applicable tax) in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement.
After the completion, the Company ceased to hold any interest
in the Target Company and the Target Company ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 21 July 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated 29 August 2022 regarding the
disposal of Haian Hengfa.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of
assets, subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above in this report, the Group has no plan
authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for
FY2022 (FY2021: Nil).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ELL Environmental Holdings (“ELL Environmental’ or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred
to as the “Group”, “we”, “us, or “our”) is presenting its seventh
Environmental, Social, and Governance (“‘ESG”) Report to its
stakeholders to illustrate the Group’s sustainable development

strategy, approach, and accomplishments during the year.
REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope of this Report
covers the Group’s major operations from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”) of:

° Operation services of the Rugao Hengfa Wastewater
Treatment Facility, in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”); and

o Biofuel pellet production business of PT Rimba Palma
Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL”) in Jambi, Indonesia.

Due to completion of disposal of Haian Hengfa Facility in
December 2022, it was excluded in the reporting scope.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has prepared this Report in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DATA COLLECTION METHOD

The information presented in this Report is sourced from the
Group’s official documents and statistical data. The Board of
Directors (“the Board”) approved this Report in March 2023.

FEEDBACK

The Group values the opinions and suggestions of its
stakeholders as a driving force for sustainable development. If
you have any feedback or suggestions regarding the Group’s
sustainable development or this Report, please do not hesitate
to contact us at ell@anli.com.hk. We appreciate your input and
look forward to hearing from you.

OUR BUSINESS

Founded in 2002, ELL Environmental is a one-stop
environmental solutions service provider. Currently, we offer a
one-stop approach to the provision of wastewater treatment
services using the “Build — Operate — Transfer” (or BOT)
model. We have two wastewater treatment facilities in operation
which are all located within Jiangsu Province, China, treating
municipal and industrial wastewater. The Group also investing
in biofuel pellet production business in Jambi, Indonesia and
developing a power supply business in Bunga Island, Indonesia.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT

The Group’s primary wastewater treatment operations consist of
two facilities located in Rugao County, Jiangsu Province, China,
which treat both municipal and industrial sewage. Our facilities
are equipped with Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor (“MBBR”)
treatment technology and have the capacity to treat up to
80,000 tonnes of wastewater daily. The diagrams below provide
an overview of the key wastewater treatment processes utilized

by our facilities:
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Our wastewater treatment facilities adhere to local wastewater
treatment standards to ensure that the treated wastewater
meets quality requirements. The treated wastewater undergoes
a series of procedures, including:

1. Filtration

2. Sedimentation
3. Adjustment

4. Acidification
5. Anaerobic

6.  Sterilization

Our wastewater treatment business is committed to reducing
the pollution of surrounding water bodies by ensuring that the
quality of treated wastewater meets the Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard and the Class 1-A or Class 1-B Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment
Plants (GB18918-2002). We obtain Pollutant Emission Permits
as required by the Measures for Pollutant Discharge Permitting
Administration (for Trial Implementation). We monitor the water
quality on a daily basis and record details such as chemical
oxygen demand (“COD”), biological oxygen demand (“BOD”),
pH value, suspended solids (“S8”), ammonia (NHs), water
content, organic materials, and pH value of sludge, etc. in a
monthly report. We also conduct regular inspections to ensure
the quality of treated wastewater before it is discharged. Our
core responsibility and mission are to maintain the highest level
of environmental protection and sustainability.

BIOFUEL PELLET PRODUCTION

ELL Environmental’s subsidiary, RPSL, primarily operates biofuel
pellet production businesses in Jambi, Indonesia. The core raw
material used in the production process is wood pellets, which
are typically generated from the production of wood products.
Our goal is to maximize the use of wood pellets to help minimize
waste and reduce the burden on the environment. We have
completed the construction of a production facility to process
wood pellets as the major raw material, and has commenced
operations and sales of processed wood pellets to power plants
in Southeast Asia, our primary target customers, in mid-2022.
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BRI - HERERHE

To ensure the quality of our biomass power generation and
biofuel pellet production, we have established a “Standard
Operation Procedure” (SOP) for our businesses which guides
employees to run daily operations in a standardized and
stringent manner.

BOARD STATEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

BOARD’S OVERSIGHT OF ESG ISSUES

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of
environmental, social, and governance risks, while considering
stakeholders’ concerns to determine material issues for the
Group. The Group has implemented risk management and
internal control mechanisms to identify, manage, and monitor
risks, including ESG-related risks. We regularly review and
refine these mechanisms. For further information regarding the
Group’s corporate governance measures, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND STRATEGY

The Group has established dedicated teams within each
business division to manage ESG issues. They are responsible
for overseeing the implementation of the Group’s sustainability
strategy, updating sustainability policies, reviewing sustainability
risks, monitoring sustainability performance, goals, and targets,
and reviewing feedback from stakeholders. They report on these
sustainability matters regularly to the Board for decision-making
purposes.

ESG-RELATED GOALS AND TARGETS

We are committed to integrating sustainability practices into our
daily operations and aligning our sustainability goals with our
strategic direction, creating innovative and productive spaces
that generate sustainable values for our stakeholders. We
continue to monitor and oversee progress towards corporate
goals and targets, address climate change, and improve our
performance on key ESG matters.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group prepared this Report based on the following four

reporting principles:

Principles

RAl

Materiality

BE2NH

Quantitative

21t

Balance

¥

Consistency

— B

Definitions

&

The threshold at which ESG issues
determined by the board are sufficiently
important to investors and other
stakeholders that they should be reported.
EEESETHBESGEEEHREER
HtHh EELEETEXER  BITARE
fEH B R o

KPIs in respect of historical data need to be
measurable. The issuer should set targets
(which may be actual numerical figures or
directional, forward-looking statements)

to reduce a particular impact. In this way
the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems can be evaluated
and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative,
explaining its purpose, impacts, and giving
comparative data where appropriate.
FRESBBRNBREMIERTAATIE -
BITARBIT TR ERNZENBR(AIA
ERHFH MM  AIRENREA) IR
B HEhERBRREERRGHMEA
WAL RERE -  ECBIBERERWNEHA - @
MEEMRZE  WHEEBNEITRHE
LE BB R o

The ESG report should provide an unbiased
picture of the issuer’s performance.

The report should avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.

RBRE HERERREEE MR NEm2
B WRAREE T REMTEREFER
R HEEE BRI E2HBA -

The issuer should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

FTABRER—BMEERT L <K
;%Z CHERERBBARAEEERMNL
X o
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RIR - HERERHRE

BRERR

ARBERFATHIERERAFHE

Responses from the Group

£EEE

Through engaging with stakeholders as well
as considering the Group’s business nature
and development, material sustainability
issues are identified.
REARNSEFRENEBARZEREED
EHMENBER BEEANAHFEER

F=

The Group discloses its key environmental
and social performance indicators
quantitatively where appropriate.

SEAEBEENRRAZ/MN T AKEELRD
RORBMESERER -

The Group has identified and disclosed

the environmental, social and governance
issues with significant impact on the
Group’s business, including the results

and challenges faced by the Group, in this
Report.
SECEARETHELIRETHERE
BEEAZENRE HeakEhrfE &
15 & B /O B R A BR A PR EX -

The reporting scope and reporting method
are substantially consistent with those of
the prior year(s), and this Report has also
disclosed relevant comparative information.
HEHEMBKEHEE F—FEER—B
ABELHEETHEHBANLEREM -

BRRRERERLH TECCFFR
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R HEBRERKRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

BhEsR

The Group places a strong emphasis on stakeholder ANEBERFTMH EBR BREFEMNE

communication and actively seeks to

incorporate appropriate EME R REFH  UFEXRE - ZME

opinions and suggestions into our continuous improvement #BIEHABE - - REMEEE - BF
process. We have identified contractors, shareholders & & + 3F BT 4B £ (INGOJ) ~ & 4% 2B 9
and investors, government authorities, non-governmental ([EPDJ) - {t/Er - E B EMMIL R
organizations (NGOs), environmental protection departments AHKFHEBHHEHR - KB BT
(EPDs), suppliers, business partners, and the neighboring RFRANIFEXNEREBEBEE KEE
community as our key stakeholder groups. We collect feedback L4HBIE AEELERUFERRER KRR
from these groups regarding the Group’s operations and HJX£&

sustainable development performance through various formal

and informal two-way communication channels.

EMPLOYEES CONTRACTORS SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
=31 AERE BERMKREE
° Staff Mailbox ° Interview ° General Meeting
B THEM Bl RS
° Meeting ° Meeting ° Telephone Interview
% eH% BRARN A
° Training ° Company Website
=31 NGIEERS
° Interview ° Press Conference
Bl FEBme
o Intranet o Announcement
)i N
o Financial Report
WIS mRE
GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES NGO/EPD SUPPLIERS
BRER EBUF AR, RIREBM R
° Site Visit ° Site Visit ° Site Visit
B E R BEER B ER
° Interview ° Interview ° Interview
BUSINESS PARTNERS COMMUNITY
° Site Visit ° Social Media (e.g., public account
B ER on WeChat/WhatsApp)
e Cooperation Meeting HARIERE (FIR{EE 7 BRF, WhatsApp)
EfEeE e Company Website
NGIEERN
o Interview
° Seminar
e
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In addition to regular stakeholder communications as outlined
above, we engage an independent sustainability consultant
to conduct a materiality assessment on a yearly basis. This
assessment involves collecting stakeholders’ views through an
online survey to identify the materiality of various sustainability
issues. We believe that the results of the materiality assessment
can help us identify environmental, social, and governance
issues that are material to the Group, allowing us to improve
our sustainability approach and strategies more effectively. The
process of the materiality assessment covers:

1. Identify 27 ESG issues that are of concern to the Group
based on recent and available stakeholder communication
findings, listing requirements and latest sustainability trend
in the industry.

2. Invite stakeholders from various sectors to fill in an online

survey by rating the materiality of the issues to the Group.

3. Carry out materiality analysis based on the collected data
and combine with the assessment of the management.

RIR - HERERHRE

ERMFM

BRTLRBENERER  BRMTEESE
VAREERBRGFETERENMG -
AABRBREASKREROERR N
BETEABEERBENERNE - &
PEE EEUEFENERITAER L
MBI EEREEEARTENRE HE
RERBZR FRMASAHELERS

ERREE  c BEEMFHNBIERE:
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Below outlines the results of materiality assessment conducted A T&EH B EHAB O FZUETHER -
during the Reporting Period. The top 10 issues placed on the fIREMEA FAMIOEZEARE AN
top right-hand corner of the matrix are the most significant ZH&  HRARSEZFE -

issues identified and will be highlighted in this Report.

High Materiality Matrix 22 2 |4 4B f&
= A
2 16
3 s 504 Wi
S 44
%@ ® 14 ® 725 32
X
%E ® 197 ® 228 ® 1217
O
*éiig ®5 ® 109
sk ® 1315 ® 23
Oiﬁ‘rﬂ
o
£

v

WL e | R B
Low Importance to the Group ¥1&BMEZ 14 High
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Service Responsibility Caring for Employees Safeguarding the Environment

R 7% & 1F BEAET RERIER

1. Quality of services 12. Diversification and equal 17. Air emissions management
R & = opportunities talents REHERER

2. Services safety and health ZHREMESEHS 18. Energy consumption
AR5 & & M2 B 13. Recruiting and maintaining BERERE

3. Customer Communication talents 19. Climate change
and Satisfaction REMBEBAL RIx &k
EEPEBHEHREE 14. Training and development 20. Discharge quality

4.  Complaint handling B9l R management
1T TR 15. Labour practices WE=ER

5.  Customer data protection BEER 21. Greenhouse Gas Emissions
and privacy 16. Occupation health and mERBEEN
REXPEHBEMILE safety 22. Hazardous and non-

6. Advertising and labelling BEgmiass hazardous waste
management management
BERZEHER EENEZEEMER

23. Noise management
REFER
24. Resource utilization and

mitigation measures
BIRF BMERER

25. Green procurement

FERE

Corporate Governance Giving Back to Community
AR ElfE S
7.  Anti-fraud and corruption 26. Participation in Volunteer

REEBIEH Activities
8.  Anti-corruption training SEERTE

RE 55 27. Charitable donations
9.  Supplier environmental and BEBX

social performance 28. Fundraising work

HEFMRELRMERR BRIE

10. Supplier selection process
and tendering management
HEFBERENBEER

11. Disaster/emergency
response and management
BAKE BB EME IR

BERRERERAT —EC_FER 27
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Most significant issues and relevant section in this Report are
shown below:

ESG Topics
ESGX &

Section in this Report

R ERNEE

12.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Quality of services

RIEE &=

Services safety and health

AR 7% % 2 A 62 R

Customer communication and
satisfaction

EREREREE

Diversification and equal opportunities

talents

EZ- L AIIREE
Occupation health and safety
BERERNZD

Air emissions management
REBHEHREIR

Energy consumption

BE R E #

Climate change

Rzt

Discharge quality management
EREIE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
B EREBBEN

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Creating Green Fortune
Bl e
Creating Green Fortune
BlER BRI
Creating Green Fortune

BliEZels
Caring Our People

MEET

Employees’ Wellbeing
BIRE

Creating Green Fortune
BlEagels
Creating Green Fortune
BliEZBelE
Creating Green Fortune
BlEmEels
Creating Green Fortune
BliEZesE
Creating Green Fortune
BlEZBelE
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OUR APPROACH IN SUSTAINABILITY

As a leading environmental solutions provider in the PRC
and Indonesia, ELL Environmental recognizes its role as a
responsible corporate citizen and is committed to pursuing
sustainable operations. To this end, we have developed the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Policy, along with other
related policies and measures, to guide each department and
employee in incorporating sustainable principles into daily
operations. These principles include protecting employees’
rights, ensuring occupational health and safety, promoting
product and service responsibility, combating corruption,
and prioritizing environmental protection at all levels of our
operations. Our ultimate goal is to create a better, greener, and
more equitable society for future generations. The following four
sections in this Report outline our key strategies, policies, and
achievements in sustainable development:

Corporate Governance
TEER
Assess, prevent and manage
environmental, social and
governance risks and
maintain high-level business
ethics and integrity

atd ~ BIIEFIEIRIRE ~ #

gRERRR  WHERSE
BRBRENBE

ELL

>A Environmental

Holdings Limited

Caring Our People
BEEET

Build a harmonious and safe
working environment while
achieving people-orientation
and care for employees

N MR 220 TERT
CRARERAARK - 1A
FET

RIR - HERERHRE

AFRERSGH

ES—FZRPEMNENEERRATR
EBRME BRERARRBF/ERERL
MERAR BOAREAFELE- S
b BAIHERE HEREARRERER
Hit BB RER  EEXHARET
REFLEXEARMATHERRRA
BEREEIMNEG HARBEXRERZ
2 EmERBEEE RESRRER
Z-BRMNEKER EFEHT K
BYEL ERB BEFENLE N
THESESRERMEATFEEROK
B - RR R KRR

Creating Green Fortune
REZEME

Deliver high-quality
environmental protection
solutions to mitigate
pollution and reduce
environmental impact
REEGRBFR TR - A
AR S RMERBNTE

<

Contributing to the
Community
HE SR

Encourage employees to
participate in voluntary
activities and actively
contribute to community
S EES2EEREE - &
1R E BT

BERRERERAT B EER
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CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

The Group considers its fundamental responsibility to bring
positive impact to the environment. Therefore, we have
introduced comprehensive policies and measures in our
daily operations, and at the same time we strictly adhere to
applicable laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where we
operate to regulate our environmental performance, as well
as matters relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling,
and privacy concerning our environmental solutions business.
These laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste, Law No. 32/2009 on Environmental Protection
and Management, Government Regulation No. 41/1999 on Air
Pollution Control, Government Regulation No. 101/2014 on
Management of Hazardous Waste and Toxic, Law No. 7/2004
on Water Resources, the Regulation of the Minister of Energy
and Mineral Resources No. 12/2017 on Utilization of Renewable
Energy Sources for Power Supply of the Republic of Indonesia,
as well as the Advertising Law of the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance concerning relevant laws and
regulations.
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AIR, GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND USE OF

ENERGY

The Group’s air emissions, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions,
and energy consumption are primarily attributed to purchased
electricity, fuel consumption of company vehicles, machinery,
and other equipment, as well as air pollutants and odors
generated during operations. As an environmental solutions
service provider, we acknowledge our responsibility to reduce
our air and GHG emissions and optimize the use of energy to

AN
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RIR - HERERHRE

BR - RERBEPEM AR

AEBWER - AERBHHRKERE
HEFERBIINBESN  RAIEH  #F
REMBHEORBERE  UERELEM
EEXNEBERNMRR - ERARRARIEHR
B BMBEEARLIBENERRAE
REHEN WE/AERER  BBUT
H e FE R E R R R R B RE

combat global warming and climate change through a variety of

measures:

Managing air
emissions

B IR BE R PR

Minimizing odor

D IR

Optimizing use of
energy

B1LREIR B

Build atmospheric environmental protection zone
surrounding exterior to our wastewater treatment facilities
to minimize the negative impact of air pollutants imposed
to the surrounding environment
EGKEBRBESEERARRRRER -
RAEEMEEEERHEETE
Conduct regular testing on air pollutants to ensure the
emissions meet industrial and local standards

ETERRA  BREBERFERFTAITERNLEE

EERLE

Build deodorization facilities in the wastewater treatment
facilities to absorb odor

EFKEBRBRERRRRE

Adopt biological deodorization technology in Rugao Hengfa
Facilities

ENREERBRREMR RN

Plant trees around the facilities to absorb odor

ke FERER A - ARKRK

Collect and transport waste properly to reduce odor

ZERBEMEBHEY LR EK

Turn off the engines of idled vehicles
MERHERBMASIZ

Require employees to turn off electrical appliances while
leaving

ERETRMAERHAERAERE

Turn down the air flowrate of blowers according to

the quality and level of dissolved oxygen of incoming
wastewater in the wastewater treatment facilities to reduce
use of energy
BRBABSKKENSHEAARXAKRE - BIEBE
ROH 7%

BRRRERBRDA TECCFFR
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WASTE EMISSIONS

We recognize that our business activities generate both
non-hazardous and hazardous waste, including sludge, waste
oil, used batteries, general refuse, chemicals, jerry cans, and oil
filters. We acknowledge that these waste emissions can burden
the environment. As such, we are committed to managing them
in a stringent and responsible manner by promoting the concept
of reducing waste at the source and handling waste emissions
properly. We have established a waste management system that
guides employees to separate different types of non-recyclable
waste, recyclable waste, and hazardous waste. Our wastewater
plants have hazardous waste storage facilities in place to
temporarily store hazardous waste in an appropriate manner
and store chemicals safely to prevent spills. We have engaged
sanitation service providers to collect general refuse and
screener residue and third-party providers with the necessary
qualifications to collect and handle dewatered sewage sludge
generated from wastewater facilities.

Furthermore, we highly promote the concept of “green office”
to minimize the use of office paper and reduce waste at the
source. We encourage our employees to adopt electronic
communication, double-sided printing, and reuse single-sided

paper.

WASTEWATER EMISSIONS AND USE OF WATER

ELL Environmental recognizes the importance of water
conservation and the responsible management of water
resources. The Group consumes both municipal and
underground water to support its daily operations but has
not encountered any issues with water sourcing. To conserve
water resources, the Group advocates for the reuse of treated
wastewater, such as for cleaning equipment. We also generate
wastewater during its operations. We have established
wastewater treatment facilities at Rugao Hengfa to treat
industrial wastewater before discharge. In addition, we have
built a wastewater treatment facility at RPSL to treat industrial
wastewater and septic tanks to treat municipal wastewater
before discharge. We conduct regular inspections of water
quality to ensure it meets the requirements of Government
Regulation No. 82/2001 on the Management of Water Quality,
with inspection criteria including total suspended solids (TSS),
pH, metals, and phosphate.
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NOISE EMISSIONS

The Group understands that its daily operations, particularly at
its plants, may generate noise that could have negative impacts
on the surrounding environment. To minimize these effects, we
have implemented the following measures:

o Purchase low-noise equipment if possible

° Install vibration absorber and damping base to reduce
noise generated from equipment

o Install rubber damper on windows and doors to absorb
noise

o Plant trees or bamboos surrounding the plants to absorb
noise

° Conduct regular inspection to ensure equipment are in
good conditions without noise from friction or loose parts

MANAGING IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is committed to identifying and managing the impact
of its operations on the environment and natural resources to
minimize the company’s carbon footprint and promote positive
environmental outcomes.

For RPSL in Indonesia, we have conducted an environmental
impact assessment to identify and assess the potential
environmental impacts of the construction of its biofuel pellet
production plant. The assessment report identified emissions,
including waste, air emissions, and wastewater, and outlined
measures to properly handle and reduce such emissions to
minimize the impact on the environment. ELL Environmental is
dedicated to promoting sustainable practices and minimizing
the environmental impact of its operations.
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CLIMATE RESILIENCE STRATEGIES

In view of the worsening climate change problem, we strive to
take up our responsibility to address climate change issues.
The Group has integrated physical, chronic, and transitional
risks related to climate change into its risk assessments and
strategies. We have referenced the Financial Stability Board’s
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
framework to manage climate-related risks and opportunities.
The climate-related risks and opportunities identified for the
company include:

515 B 1 3R

ERRESELCHEEBESE  RMABD
FREERURKEELEEMNEE - AKHE
EERBRAGMNBEPHATERKRE
tREEENZUEERE BUHEEENSA
BEUHERR HMAZ2KReBBERZESEN
1% A8 B8 1 15 15 B B B8 T {48 (TCFD) #Y
EREEREECHBARREESE - &K
SEBMNRERELLEBERREEER
1’

Risks

Acute physical risk

Extreme weather event such as a super typhoon or other causing flooding, damage

to buildings and facilities, resulting in asset impairment and increased maintenance

costs.
=&k

Jul

Rk
MEERIE -

Chronic physical risk

1 o R RS - QR 0% i R B EL A i RO K - AR B R E

BREEREM

Long term change in climate such as a rainfall patterns causing repeated flooding

which affect the effectiveness of normal operation and speed up the replacement

need of equipment
&1t & 58 @ ke
M ]FRK -
Transitional risks
operation.

8 M

Opportunities

IR

Sustainable cities

RIRMERBEE WERENEXKRBENHKI

TELRETHHER  IERE

Increase in ESG related policies and legal requirements increase our cost of

ESGHBBRENEZZERWEMMET HMHZEMAK -

Increase in market demand of wastewater treatment and new energy enhance the

number of available projects in the market that allow us to participate in and grow

our business.
AFELE
A BERERBEMINER -

We acknowledge the importance of addressing the
opportunities and risks of climate change and have developed
the Environmental, Social, and Governance Management Policy
that includes a climate change strategy. The policy aims to
strengthen our climate risk management and performance. ELL
Environmental has set targets to reduce the intensity of scope
1 and 2 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to mitigate its impact
on climate change.
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RIR - HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL KPIS HERREXEE
2022 2021 Unit
Environmental Performance BRBR —EB-C —E--F EBEf
Emissions BB
Air Emissions BRER
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) A (NOX) 1,461.46 138.81 kg AT
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) i &t ¥1(S0x) 9.33 1.50 fr
Particulate Matters (PM) B2 B RL(PM) 17.27 2.81 fr

GHG Emissions

Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2)

Direct Emissions (Scope 1)
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2)

GHG Removal (Scope 1)

GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2)

Intensity (per floor area)

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes
Total Hazardous Waste Produced

Hazardous Waste Intensity (per floor area)

Total Non-hazardous Waste Produced

General Refuse

Sludge

Non-hazardous Waste Intensity (per floor

area)

= R 88 B
mEREHREE(HBE—
LEEZ)
EERHM(BE-)
R R (EE )

/Eﬂ-ﬁwﬁwf}é(g@ )

RERBHN(BE R
E)EE(BREAR)

H}

[k}

REREERREN
EENEERERNLE

BEREVEE (BEAEE)
EXNEZERNEE
—RED

G

BERENEE(BEAER)

5,236.24 8,860.76  tonnes of COze

AMZE{iREE

213.13 39.37  tonnes of CO-e
AB-ElIREE

5,023.11 8,827.60 tonnes of COse
AB-EILIREE

0 6.21 tonnesofCOze
AM-E{iREE
52.26 66.35 kg of CO6/m?
AFZ&tKER
3.62 455  tonnes
NI}
0.04 0.03  kg/m?
A/ FRK
11,794.11 24,012.45 tonnes
NI
6.10 1517  tonnes
NI}
11,788.01 23,997.28  tonnes
NI}
117.72 179.82  kg/m2
D/ K
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2022 2021 Unit
Environmental Performance RERS —E-C T -F Bfy
Use of Resources EREA
Energy BR
Total Energy Consumption RREREEE 7,903.96 11,120.86  Mwh
TETRE
Purchased Electricity HNEEE 7,782.10 10,967.29 MWh
TETRE
Diesel Oil L5 86.85 110.71  MWh
TETRE
Liquefied Natural Gas BIERAR 0 499 MWh
TETRE
Unleaded Petrol LA 35.01 37.87  MWh
TEFRE
Energy Consumption Intensity (per floor area) #EREEZRE (BREERE) 78.89 83.28 kWh/m?
ThE/FHX
Water X
Total Water Consumption BHKE 13,618.70 13,954.00 ms
M HXK
Water Consumption Intensity (per floor area) F/KZE (BEEEE) 0.14 010 m¥m?
VAR FH

Remarks: e

& Unless otherwise stated, the calculation methodology referred to 1

“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX and “EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory Guidebook” issued by European Environment
Agency.

& The emission factor for Scope 2 emissions from RPSL adopted from 2.

the latest sustainability reports of the local power companies.

&5 Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of s

packaging material for finished products.
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CARING OUR PEOPLE

ELL Environmental values each employee’s contribution to the
company’s sustainable development and strives to provide a
healthy and safe workplace with a supportive atmosphere. The
company adheres strictly to labor laws, including the “Labour
Law of the PRC,” the “Labour Contract Law of the PRC,”
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour,” and the
Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on the Implementation of
Occupational Safety and Health Management Systems of the
Republic of Indonesia. We have a number of policies in place
that cover terms of compensation, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, antidiscrimination, benefits, and welfare to safeguard
the interests of our employees.

During the Reporting Period, ELL Environmental was not aware
of any significant violations of relevant laws and regulations.
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RIR - HERERHRE

MEATL

BERRERENEIHEB A FEHR
BREERNER BHORHE—EEE %
PHBESAABAENTIIESE - HMEE
BIEMABEERZEREN  BEFEARHK
MBLEE) (FEARKMBLE AR
EYV KB IEFEREIREIREANROER
AEHNBEERELERREEESE
F50/20125% BT VA # » AP HlE — & 5
EHRBELSERE BEEREA IR
F HKEKE  FEEEe 2t K
R R EMEFEEK  REE I -

RBEESHE AEEBLXTNBEMEKR
EREBEZEERBRIINER -

BRRRERERLH “ECCFER
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EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW ERESE
As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 126" H2022F12A31H  £EEHEZ1261BT
employees, with 32 in the PRC and 94 in Indonesia. HARAMMAFE - 4ZURENE -
By Gender
31l
I l By Employment Type
2022 2021 e
AR
= Vale 109 75
S
Female
i 17 28
By Age
FHS
1. .. I I I
2021 2021 |
m 20 or below 2022 2021
20558k AT 4 0 m Senior
management 4 6
2o 53 31 BRERE
21-30B% X
Middle
m 31-40 41 38 management 24 13
31-40% HRERE
41-50 | Technical staff
18 19
41-507% KT T o7 20
m51-60 General staff
51608 6 11 CBRT 31 64
61 or above
61ARE AL 4 4

1 The number of employee only includes employee of Rugao Hengfa 1 BT ASEBIENREERMIEERPSLA
and PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari. =
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate? by
gender, age group and geographical region is as below:

By Age
FHR
2022
m 20 or below
20sspA T 190%
21-30

By Gender 21-305% 26%

4 Rl m 31-40 2
31-40%% ¢

N R

2022 41-507%

m Male 51-60 o
vy 17% 51-60%% 12%
Female 61 or above
LS S0 1t 0%

EQUALITY AND WORK-LIFE BALANCE

ELL Environmental is committed to promoting a harmonious
workplace and upholding labor rights in accordance with
relevant labor laws, regulations, and standards. We follow
the principles of diversity, equality, and non-discrimination
in all aspects of human resources, including recruitment,
remuneration, promotion, and training. We treat all employees
equally, regardless of their gender, age, race, religion, marital
status, nationality, or sexual orientation.

2 Employee turnover rate is calculated by number of employee turnover
in a category divided by total number of employee in that category.

RIR - HERERHRE

SHIR - TR - FERAER MR
S OMBIRATT o

By Geographical Region

H [
.
2022
mPRC
= 2%
Indonesia o
EfE 24%
FERIGREZFTE

BERRBOREREED  ELME
BiZ INARBHEBEIE  RUIKLE
o BMRANEREBIERF  BER
BFHelE BARBIIERTLSE
e ZrthkREKOFRR - LAY
BUETI-RALC  TwmEMER - Fie -
Bk R SRR - BFELERR -

2 BEIRAENFEFEZRE —HAINETL
MENBRUZBARNEET AL -

BRRRERERLH TECCFFR
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BRI - HERERHE

We provide competitive remuneration and benefits to employees KM AEITIRHEERF IO FHEF -
as recoghnition for their contribution. The compensation package  [B %3 4 /9 &) & B o & Bl & 35 2 R B -
includes basic salary, allowances, and bonuses. We will #Aik#ES - RPSTHRTEHMEE -
regularly review our remuneration system to ensure it aligns HRHFEWHKFE - MM EAEAE TR
with market levels. We also contribute to various employee #ZE®RF @ BREEKBEZATEE L
benefits, including social insurance and housing provident fund Mt @R EREEATE S UK AEH
in the PRC, as well as pension, health insurance, work-related EETLIRMEBEZRE  BEFRR L5
insurance, and termination compensation in Indonesia, as REAMKRILIEAEES -

required by law.

Employee Benefits

BEIRA

° Public holidays
o  NHEH
o Statutory holidays

e JAEMRHA

° Sick leave

e AR

° Marriage leave
o IBR

° Maternity leave

e ER

° Compassionate leave
o BiME

° Annual leave

e  F

° Health insurance
o EBEBERR

° Company trip

o DK

° Festive gift cards
e EFiHRBS

° Health check

s REERD

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2022 Annual Report

Medical allowance
BRI

Overtime allowance

AN 3 2 B

Discretionary bonus
BB AL

Mourning allowance
A%

Religious holiday allowance
TREETRERL

Meal allowance

fERIER

High temperature subsidies

= i 8 Bh
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EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING BIZRm

We recognize our responsibility to prioritize the well-being of our R ERE T L HE - AEEZE B HEBE
employees. The Group adheres to relevant laws and regulations 2N BHINBEREINREEELZ @ &
to safeguard employee health and safety, including the “Work $EETRBER(hEAREME L 2L EX)
Safety Law of the PRC” and the “Government Regulation No. NEREIEEA S HEMNEERBEL S
50/2012 on Implementation of Occupational Safety and Health  #& BE & 32 %l Z 8550/20125% B A 48 » &
Management Systems” of the Republic of Indonesia. We have fIEHIEEEMBERFTELT 2B ER
formulated rigorous occupational health and safety measures to  PEE T B1F:

protect its employees, including:

.

Providing Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”) to applicable employees
including gloves, work clothes, masks, ear plug, ear muff, safety helmet and
welding glasses
REBEIRMHEARERE BEFE IER BHS HFE Z2HEK
BRRER

Conducting inspections on a regular basis on fire-fighting equipment, facilities
and electrical appliances

MONERBE  RENES[ETERRSE

Conducting fire and emergency drills regularly as well as arranging safety
trainings to ensure employees are equipped with relevant knowledge and skills
EHETANEREZREE YREIZHZE2HEI  wERMAEEBBENH
N ¥k e

Arranging designated personnel to oversee the safety of the work area
ZHETEABRBETIEHME LS

Organizing sport and leisure activities for employees to relax
BPBERKEES  BEIHRRF L

During the past three years including the Reporting Period, HE#@E==ZF (BERNXREHM) £BZ
the Group was not aware of any work-related fatalities. there HBEABEMET/EHBANRTEH - 2
were four minor work-related injuries in Indonesia during the % R IfEHIME - EIfE A MU R & T 1E 45

Reporting Period and resulted in 34 man-day lost.

MNBRETHEEN SHMAETEIR
KRTERE -

BERRERERAT B EER

4
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We recognize the importance of providing employees
with training and promotion opportunities to support their
professional growth alongside the Group’s development.

We strive to establish and maintain a comprehensive career
development ladder that offers equal opportunities for
promotion based on performance appraisal results. Regular
performance appraisals are conducted to evaluate employees’
work performance, abilities, and skills.

In terms of training, we offer a variety of training programs to
enable employees to acquire professional knowledge and skills
and strive for excellence. During the Reporting Period, we
offered over 420 hours of training to our employees. Below
shows the percentage of employees trained® by gender and
employee category, and average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee type:

3 Employee training ratio is calculated by number of employee received
training during the Reporting Period in a category divided by total
number of employee in that category.
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BMRBAETRHEEIRE A RSN
BE2N BAXKETIRAEEKRFK
ﬁo

BABAHEREF TENRIERE
B OREBEEUERERRETENET
e ZMEeEMETERER  Fih
BTETIERR - EABENMEEE

EEINFE BMAEBEIREZTIEHN
BIRE - BB TIRAEEME M
BackiE - EREHHE  AEEIRER
420/ N IE S o LATR A B TR B
EEERESMNEBIINLAI - A KRIE
MBI A2 B X8 B 81 5 /9 19 55 31 B 8
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Training ratio by gender
RIERIBI D XN B

= Male B Female &

Average training hours
completed per
employee by gender
RERIB S EAES
TERE) I TS8R

2022
u Male
Bt 40
m Female 259
g

Training ratio by
employment type

RERRERIZ DXL

Senior management &4 &2 [E
Middle management A 4% &2 &
Technical staff #%fiT8 T
General staff —f¢8 T

Average training hours
completed per employee by
employment type
RESENESNEMIES
TERCH) PR G EY

2022
® Management
EBE 4.43
m Technical staff
BKiTET 1.04
m General staff
—RAT 7.29
BRRREREBRAR
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LABOR STANDARDS

We are committed to being a responsible and desirable
employer, and strictly adhere to applicable labor standards in
all jurisdictions where it operates and prohibits the recruitment
of child and forced labor. During the recruitment process, we
will verify the personal identity documents of candidates to
ensure they have met the legal working age to prevent the
occurrence of child labor. We have also established clear
policies on rest periods, leave, overtime work, working hours,
dismissal, and other related arrangements to prevent forced
labor. In cases of staff resignation or dismissal, we will offer
appropriate compensation in accordance with applicable labor
laws and regulations. Any instances of illegal or forced labor are
investigated and addressed in compliance with local laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
instances of child or forced labor within the Group.

MANAGING SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2022, we have engaged 678 suppliers in
which 621 are in Indonesia, 1 in Singapore and 56 in China. We
mainly worked with local suppliers to minimize the greenhouse
gas emissions generated from transportation.

We are acknowledged to manage the environmental and social
impacts of suppliers and promote positive outcomes throughout
the entire supply chain. We have already established a Code of
Conduct that requires suppliers to uphold environmental, social,
and governance principles, including environmental protection,
labor rights, labor standards, and anti-corruption practices
when providing products and services. We will conduct regular
assessments to ensure that suppliers comply with the Code
of Conduct. If any suppliers are found to be noncompliant, we
may terminate the partnership or require corrective measures.
During the Reporting Period, we have conducted a review of 51
suppliers located in Mainland China.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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In addition, we also place significant importance on the quality
of suppliers’ products and services, as they have a direct
impact on the quality of the our operations. We conduct
rigorous assessments of potential new suppliers, evaluating
their qualifications, product and service quality, price, and
reputation to ensure they meet our requirements. Similarly,
existing suppliers are also regularly assessed to ensure they
have met our expectations. We are dedicated to maintaining
high standards of product and service quality across its supply
chain to deliver superior value to its customers.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PRIVACY PROTECTION

Our business operations involve handling confidential
information, including customer information, business
information, and financial information of the Group. To ensure
the privacy of this information and to alleviate customer
concerns, we have implemented measures to handle it with
care. These measures include requiring employees to abide by
our personnel management policy and employee handbook,
and not disclosing privacy information to third parties without
prior consent. We also use passwords for computers that store
confidential information, and store hard copies of sensitive
materials in a designated place with an electronic lock and
24-hour surveillance cameras.

ADVERTISING

The Group strictly adheres to the Advertising Law of the
PRC and other relevant laws and regulations when creating
promotional materials. We conduct a thorough review of these
materials before publishing to ensure that there is no misleading
information that may harm consumer rights. As our business
does not heavily rely on product labelling, this is not a significant
issue for the Group.

RIR - HERERHRE

o BT D EREEBEEATE
MEEEERERBEE R - LA HIRE
M EREREBTME  FEEEE
EmRGEER BEERBES  BR
AN EREER - AL HMHeY
AAHMERETTHNG BRESFF
BRMANHE - LA ONHEE LR
EmEMEREREER WHAEF
friEEE -

EmRE
(EERT

AEENEK2ESRERTEN B
REFEN SENXGERRMBE
- RREERLE BREREPZL
BMEEmREZERERE BREERETSE
SADEREBGHERBETFM  EXR
REABAMTEREBLENHE=TTHKE -
BAMENRERTENNERRED
B URNEHFREMNOXHERFFRA
BETFHEMANEERREREANT -

R&

AEEHNBT(REARKMBESE)
REMBREERBOG EESEHMF -
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ANTI-CORRUPTION
UPHOLDING BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

The Group is committed to maintaining a fair and transparent
business environment and promoting ethical behavior in
all our operations. We strictly adhere to the “Law of the
PRC on Anti-Unfair Competition”, the “Criminal Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery”,
Hong Kong’s “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” and other
relevant laws and regulations, prohibiting corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering and other unethical and
unlawful behaviours within the Group. We have introduced
the Anti-corruption Policy and Code of Conduct, requiring our
employees to maintain business ethics and integrity at all times.
We have also established the Whistleblowing Policy, allowing
employees and third parties to report suspicious cases or
other misconduct while keeping their identities confidential. We
conduct prompt investigations and take corresponding follow-up
actions seriously to protect the rights of the Group and our
stakeholders.

We will arrange trainings from time to time to raise employees’
awareness of relevant issues. During the Reporting Period, due
to spread of pandemic, we have not arranged anti-corruption
related trainings to our employees. We will actively seek
appropriate opportunities to arrange relevant trainings in the
coming year.

In the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY

ELL Environmental is committed to listening to and addressing
the needs of the community. We believe that striking a balance
between business development and community investment is
a core principle of our sustainable strategy. We are dedicated
to wastewater treatment and participating in new energy,
which benefits the community as a whole. We allocate
adequate resources each year to community investment and
encourage our employees to volunteer to showcase our efforts
in taking up corporate social responsibility. We believe that
community investment is an important aspect of our sustainable
development and we will continue to evaluate and improve our
approach to ensure that it aligns with our values and goals.
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During the Reporting Period, RPSL has donated RP54,025,955 R#&EHB >  RPSLAEFTEMER M A
to support local residents in need, as well as celebration &%t [RKETHENE S B 754,025,955
of festivals in the surrounding community. It also provided EIEf&E - ZFIMASAIREETEIHRS
internship opportunities to students, allowing them to equip EMFIE2E B HH TIEREE -
themselves with adequate job skills.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE EEMETHM(ER  HERELRSE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX BEDAB RS

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

TRER EH —REEXRBREERER -1 3 BE®

Environmental

A B

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEAT: BERY

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36
Information on: Fortune

(a) the policies; and BliEHEY =

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

— R E

EHESRRERBEN  MARLHEES FEREESEEYINE
)

@ B%: R

o) BTHRTABEAZENHEBEZRRRINER -
dOERENERASLY WMAELCYEEMIBREZEZRRIRED
BRY - BERBEE ALK T ST R - [ABMCAY 2
B EANBH BEBERZVEERROAAESE

KPI'A1.1 | The types of emissions and respective emission data. Environmental P. 35-36
KPIS
S 4E ; B ; ° . r
BSLA | o L AR B B R
BIEE =
Al

BREBRIERERAH CECCEER 47
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

ITRER BEH —REEKBREERER

KPI A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BgE | BER@ENkEREEEE)REREBYHRE (UBTE) R

HER |(WERZE(WMNEEESEN  BEXEFTE) -

Al.2

KPI A1.3 | Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

HRE |MELEEFMELEEEEVAEECAEAE)R(MERTE

BER | (WABEEEN -  SERKBAE) -

A1.3

KPI A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

MigE | MELEESEEYASE(UBAEIR(WER BE(MUEE

BIER | 28 BERKBE) -

Al.4

KPI A1.5 | Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

BRE |HARFAIIANEREERRREINELEEMEMALRE -

B

Al.5

KPI A1.6 | Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HgE | HARBEENEITEEVN L KM AT LA ER

WIER | BRAEINELERMEMHLRE -

Al.6

Section/
Declaration

E® B9

Creating Green
Fortune
BEREME

Page
Number

BE¥
P. 30-36

48
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

ITRER BEH —REEKBREERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

i -

Section/
Declaration

E® B9

HERERRE

Page
Number

HE

EHA2: 8 REMH

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Fortune
other raw materials. BliEZEYE
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
— R E
BERERER(BIERIR  KREMEMRE) OB R
HCERAARAEE RfEF &8 BF RiEE -
KPI' A2.1 | Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Environmental P. 35-36

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. KPIS

per unit of production volume, per facility). IR R A RUE

) N DN . =
BRE |RERSSHEER SHEER(ME  K3oh) BFEE A
BIER | TEFAKFAZEIREE(WAGESSMN - BERKMAE) -
A21
KPI Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
A2.2 production volume, per facility).
HMgtE | ARKEREEWNAEESEN  BERBF;E) -
[EEE
A2.2
KPI Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Creating Green P. 30-36
A2.3 taken to achieve them. Fortune
e ; . L BliEZ el E

BRGRAE | i BTET ST A0 AL R K A B AR IR A T3S e B AZ AT IR IR -
MIERE | TR o
A2.3
KPI Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
A2.4 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken

to achieve them.
BBAE | HAUSREGEBKIR LRI B RE - LA R PRS2 AR &
MER | ERRABEINEEEEMFEMAFRE -
A2.4

BRRRERERLH TR CFER
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RIE - HERERERE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHERE BEH —REEREEARER BH/ B9 EH
KPI Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Not applicable N/A
A2.5 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. to the Group’s i A
business
= | g = At ksl b sl = () [HE S sem Bsl :
%a@%%i %}ZZ,Ell:lFﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ%#’l’E’]%ui(l//(umﬁu+§—)&(ﬁu5@}zﬁ)EEQ{M Wﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ(\\K%
5& TEI *ﬁr {ﬁi E"]%%
A2.5
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
BHEA3: RERXAER
General Disclosure Managing P. 33
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment Impact on
and natural resources. Environment
and Natural
—T&/E';E I A Resources
MIEBETAEHRERRAERE HEMEE - EIMHIBENG
KPI A3.1 | Description of the significant impacts of activities on the REROTE
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BRE | HAEBIDHRERRABERNEAZEREEDNERA
BIER | BEENTH -
A3.1
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEA4: RIZZ1L
General Disclosure Climate P. 34
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues | Resilience
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Strategies

—REE
BN EHEERAREHETAELATYENEARGKHEBEENREK -

KPI A4.1 | Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the

actions taken to manage them.

e | RICEKMAREHETAELAYENEARKEHRSEE
MIER | MEHITH -
A4

M 2 1 5K B
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RIE - HERERERE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHER EH - REERBRERER EH BH ¥

B. Social

B. % &

Employment and Labour Standards

EBEREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EmEB1: {E&E

General Disclosure Caring Our p. 37-44
Information on: People

(a) the policies; and BMEET

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—REE

R ERE  BEREA IEEE BH - FE#E - 2ol
SR A R E 38 R AR A A

@ HZE: &

o) BTFHBETABEAFENHEBEEEZRRAONEHR -

KPI B1.1 | Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- Employee P. 38-39
or part-time), age group and geographical region. Overview
BEME

MgE | RUR - BERBERMME2BRER)  FHRANRBEE D H
HiEE | EBAZ-

B141

KPI Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
B1.2 region.

BHE | mUR FRAMNRWRESNEERKLEX -

WA IR

B1.2
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

TEHER EH - REERBRERER
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Section/
Declaration

E® B9

Page
Number

HE

EEB2 - BREHEZZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

— R E

EFARHEZ2TIERERREBEEHABELEREETMN

(@ BR: &

o) BTHBITABEAZENHBAEEZRBRANNEH -

KPI' B2.1 | Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

BRE | BE=FERERFRE)BFEAITHNAHE LXK
WIE AT

B2.1

KPI Lost days due to work injury.

B2.2

e | RIGEEXIERSH-

WA IR

B2.2

KPI Description of occupational health and safety measures
B2.3 adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
A | HAPRANBEREET R AREARITRERAE -
EEE

B2.3

Employees’
Wellbeing
BITZE

P. 41
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

ITRER BEH —REEKBREERER

RS -4t

Section/
Declaration

E® B9

BRERKRE

Page
Number

HE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
REB3 : 8 E Rl
General Disclosure Employee P. 42-43
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development
duties at work. Description of training activities. BT %R
—MIKEE
FHARARERITIFRENAHM R EENBE - i FIED -
H BRI TR EhEE BRI BRE -
KPI The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
B3.1 category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
ARE | RUEREEBEN(UWaRERE FREEE) EHI>HXI
BIEE EEBDL -
B3.1
KPI The average training hours completed per employee by gender
B3.2 and employee category.
ARE | RUEREBEEAES  BREEETAXINFHRE -
AR 1R
B3.2
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4: % T X8|
General Disclosure Labour P. 44
Information on: Standards
(@) the policies; and & TR
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
— MK EE
BERAMIEET K5 hl ST :
(@ BE: &
o) BTHBEITABEAXZENHEEEZEZRBANNER -
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B - HERERRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHER EH - REERBRERER EH BH BEH
KPI Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour P. 44
B4.1 avoid child and forced labour. Standards

o . BT A
A |l BREENNEEAREETRAEG ST
e R
B4.1
KPI Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
B4.2 discovered.
FARE |HAERRERABAREREBBRAENNTE -
L
B4.2

Operating Practices

& EE

Aspect B5:Supply Chain Management
EEB5: ftEH#EEE

General Disclosure Managing P. 44

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Suppliers
ERMHER

— BB E

ERHEENREMMEAREREK -

KPI Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.1

e | RmERIASNHHERHEA -

IR R

B5.1

KPI Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number

B5.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and

how they are implemented and monitored.
MtE | HOAEMEREEENED  mERTEEEMNNHEEREE

WIHE | ARABEGNNTRERSE o
B5.2
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RIE - HERERERE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHER EH - REERBRERER EH BH BEH
KPI Description of practices used to identify environmental

B5.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

e | WOAARBNHERSERANREREERERAERD - A
MR | REABRTRERTE -

B5.3
KPI Description of practices used to promote environmentally
B5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

e HWIEREHEAREEZHARRERNMRFNED UK
MIERE | HERTRERTE -
B5.4

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EHEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36
Information on: Fortune
(a) the policies; and BliEHZEY R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

— R E

FAFMREERARBENREREZ S  BE  SELRLBZTEURERK

FER

(@ Bk &

o) BTHBITABEAZENHBEEERRANNER -

KPI Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Not applicable N/A

B6.1 for safety and health reasons. to the Group’s A~ A
business

MRt | CERDERERRBTRARSARZEMARNKNESL © | tomnrem

BIE R SO

B6.1
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEBRERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEHER EH - REERBRERER EH BH BEH
KPI Number of products and service-related complaints received No significant N/A
B6.2 and how they are dealt with. complaints T H
N A N . received.
MEE |EEEREmRRENRFEHEAREYEFZE - T
N /X * X
I TR .
B6.2
KPI Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable N/A
B6.3 intellectual property rights. to the Group’s A~ A
- business
RALAN | A R R A A 0 1R A 7 i A A E
IR R SO
B6.3
KPI Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | Not applicable N/A
B6.4 to the Group’s T A
B | R0 R E SRR S
B 1= A
B6.4 ik
KPI Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Privacy P. 45
B6.5 how they are implemented and monitored. Protection
N B P . PR ALR &
BRE | HAEEEENRERLEBEE  UREBERTRERFE -
L
B6.5
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

ITRER BEH —REEKBREERER BEEH 8BS HE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

BHEB7: R&ES

General Disclosure Anti-corruption P. 46

Information on: = @18 Bk

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—REE
EBIEEEEE - MR - MFFRERBM:
(@) B &

b)) BTHRTABEAZENEBEZRRRONER -

KPI' B7.1 | Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

s | RERPANBRTASHEEEREYCEGENE SHARMN
MIEE | NBBRFRER °
B7.1

KPI' B7.2 | Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

s | RamEBERBEREN URBBRTRERTE -

AR 1R

B7.2

KPI B7.3 | Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

MgtE | HimEFRETRENOREIGEI -

MIE 1R

B7.3
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

ITRER BEH —REEKBREERER BEEH 8BS HE

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EHEB8: #HERE

General Disclosure Contributing to P. 46
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take = & B

into consideration the communities’ interests.

— R E

ERANHEZ2ERTREENEHEZTENBREEB DG ERLE

MEBmEBR -

KPI Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental

B8.1 concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

MBE | ZIERER(WHE REFEE SIFHFR #F -
BER | 8B

B8.1

KPI Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
B8.2

MgE AR IREMPRERWMESEXFHE) -

BMIER
B8.2

58 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 75, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive
Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 5 September 2014. Mr.
Chau also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for business development
and formulation of strategies of the Group. He joined the Group
in December 2002 as a director of Everbest Water Treatment
Development Company Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chau is a director of and
owns 90% of the issued shares in Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited
(“Wealthy Sea”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language
and literature from Xiamen University (B F3 X 2) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in August 1968. He is currently a
member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (B A RB A E € %), a
deputy officer of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (% B I 1
HEMEHIZBE) and the vice chairman and the secretary-
general of the 10th board of directors of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations (& /& & & 4L E B &). Mr. Chau
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star and a Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and 2016, respectively.
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BITES
AREREE

BALZERLE 755 R_E—NF=
A+ N\BEZEAEARFES  WHR=F
—FENARBAETALRRATNEZTEIFE
EEDRHTESF - HFE-ZT—HFAN
AFARAR—EARAESCNRELZES ([
BEBEGDERE - ARANEEARAA
ETHBRRAMNESERYE YEXTEHE
AEBNEBER MR - B
EEF+AMAREBETERAR
MEZ2EWNBRARIERKBEERERA
AI(MERDMES - BLEALXRREE
RRESEEERAR(EEBINES
WHEBHEBEITRMD 0% ©

ABEER-NAANFNRAEREARHK
MBE(FEDEMASZEZRZES XE
BrE2u - FEBATEARBUGHE
EZE+T_E2EZEELE 2ER
HBHEEMEFHZEGTELRTERRE
HEMEETREEEGATFERWER -
AEER-_Z-—ZFFER_F-RED]
EEABRNRTHEXAEEMREMNE
= .
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BEENEAEEEZBAABE

Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive
director of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (stock code:
651) from September 2007 and had ceased to be the chairman
from June 2015 and was re-designated as the non-executive
director and appointed as the honorary chairman from June
2015 to November 2019. Mr. Chau has also been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Redco Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Come Sure Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 794), Million Hope Industries Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1897) and Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited (stock code: 371) since January 2014, February 2009,
June 2020 and April 2021, respectively. Mr. Chau has been
an independent non-executive director of Good Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 109) since July 2019 and has
been re-designated as its executive director and chairman
since September 2021. Mr. Chau had also been an executive
director of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 578)
from March 2000 to November 2006, an independent non-
executive director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code:
8019) from June 2003 to August 2009, GR Properties Limited
(stock code: 108) from December 2008 to September 2010,
Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089) from
December 2010 to May 2016 and Hang Pin Living Technology
Company Limited (formerly known as Hua Long Jin Kong
Company Limited) (stock code: 1682) from September 2017 to
April 2021. Mr. Chau is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 40, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEOQO”) on 5 September 2014. He has been a
member of the Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.
Mr. Chan also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan
joined the Group in March 2007 as a director of Everbest. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a database administrator at
Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los Angeles, the United States
of America (“US”), from February 2005 to December 2006.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science from the
lowa State University of Science and Technology in the US in
December 2004. He is a member of the 12th Fujian Province
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRARBAHEEZREBREEZLZEE), a standing
committee member of the 10th board of directors of the Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& i &8 &1t Bt <),
the chief supervisor of the 10th Hong Kong Minxi Association
Ltd. (& & M B &), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision
Committee of Lung Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong
Limited (BB ER 4 2), and the president of the 2nd Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Youth Committee (& /& &
B A #2€). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam
Brian, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding
interest in Everbest Environmental Investment Limited
(“Everbest Environmental”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in
Kingdrive Limited (“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the issued
shares in Carlton Asia Limited which owns approximately 1.42%
of the issued shares of the Company.

Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra
is mainly responsible for all major affairs of an Indonesia-
incorporated subsidiary of the Company, which was acquired by
the Group in late 2016. He has been overseeing the construction
and operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary
biomass power plants in that subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
from Ohio State University, the US, in 1996. He has 15 years of
experience in managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia,
including 7 years in managing ferrous trading business of a
ferrous alloy trading firm between 1998 and 2005 in Singapore.
From 2006 to 2010, Mr. Suhendra was the president director of
PT. Indoferro which operates blast furnace producing nickel pig
iron in Indonesia.
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EERSNEEE 2 AABE

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 41, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014, was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014
and was further re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company and appointed as the deputy general manager of
the Group both since April 2019. He also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international
trade department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding
Industry Group Limited from February 2011 to August 2013 and
a business adviser at Vodafone Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) from November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau was a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited
from August 2012 to June 2017. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from Manchester Metropolitan University in the
UK in September 2005. He is also registered as a technical
representative of the Professional Insurance Brokers Association
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chau has also been an independent non-
executive director of Hang Pin Living Technology Company
Limited (stock code: 1682) since April 2021. Mr. Chau is (i)
the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, an executive Director of the
Company and the Chairman and (ii) a director of Wealthy Sea, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 34, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014.
He has been a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) since 5 September
2014. He is also a director of three subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in communication from
Purdue University in the US in May 2011. Since March 2013,
Mr. Chan has been working as marketing and sales director
at PT. Indoferro. He has been involved in the business of the
Group since September 2012 when he was appointed as a
director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd. (“Exuberant”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was intended by
the then shareholders of Everbest Environmental to be used
as the holding company for the purpose of the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving
as a director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring
business opportunities in the environmental-related industry
within the larger Asia region and was also responsible for the
setting up and maintenance of the Company’s information
technology system. Mr. Chan continued to be involved in the
Group’s business after he had been appointed as a Director on
18 March 2014. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Mr. Chan
Kwan, an executive Director and the CEO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company (the
“INED”) on 5 September 2014. She has been the chairlady of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited
(previously known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April
2012, prior to which she was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y.
Ng & Co., an accounting firm, from January 2008 to April
2013. Ms. Ng has also been a director of Futurelink Limited
since February 2004. She has been a part-time lecturer in
the School of Continuing and Professional Education of City
University of Hong Kong since October 2015 and a part-
time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media Limited since August
2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy Training
Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April
2010. She has been the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong
Kong: SME Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and
“Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong” published by CCH Hong Kong Limited since September
2013. She was a director of Learning Is Fun Association Limited
from June 2007 to June 2012. Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at
Ernst & Young from September 2000 to September 2001, and
was promoted to senior accountant in October 2001 until she
left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009
and a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1997.
She has been a certified professional forensic accountant of
The Institute of Certified Forensic Accountants since September
2011, a certified tax adviser and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong since September 2010, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK since
October 2005 and a practising member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 2005.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 71, was appointed as an INED
on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5 September
2014.

Mr. Ng was a business consultant of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited, a company
principally engaged in investment, from January 2014 to April
2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. from July
1969 to December 2012 and was a chief executive from April
1992 to July 2012. Mr. Ng was an honorary president of the 37th
Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from April 1999 to March
2003 and a member of the 10th Fujian Province Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B A
RBAaAeEEREEZE®) Mr. Ng completed an extension
course in banking at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 1982.

Mr. Ng has also been an independent non-executive director
of each of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181) since June
2014 and Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science
Company Limited (stock code: 1084) since September 2019.
Mr. Ng was a non-executive director of Roma Group Limited
(stock code: 8072) from August 2017 to December 2017. Mr. Ng
was an independent non-executive director of each of Guoan
International Limited (stock code: 143) from March 2016 to
February 2021, Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code:
755) from May 2017 to January 2021 and Renco Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 2323) from March 2016 to March 2022.

Mr. Ng has also been the chairman of the supervisory board of
Well Link Bank in Macau since 31 March 2018.
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Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, aged 50, was appointed as an INED
with effect from 15 October 2019. She has been a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee since 15 October 2019.

Ms. Leung graduated from the University of Cambridge in
England with a master’s degree in law in July 1996 and from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in law in July
1994. After graduation, from 1996 to 2004, Ms. Leung worked
at Clyde & Co., where her last position was associate.

Ms. Leung is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Wales and a partner of Leung and Lau, Solicitors LLP which
she co-founded in 2005. She co-founded L.I.M Tech Limited
which commenced operations in December 2018 and Xu Shan
Charitable Foundation Company Limited in July 2019, and has
been the major shareholder and chairlady of California Insurance
Company, Limited since 2018.

Ms. Leung is presently a member of the Legal Education
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She was
previously a member of the Public Education and Publicity
Sub-committee under the Steering Committee on Mediation of
the Department of Justice and the Mediate First Pledge Sub-
Group of the Public Education and Publicity Sub-Group of the
Secretary of Justice’s Working Group on Mediation in Hong
Kong. She was previously also appointed as a Deputy District
Court Judge in Hong Kong in 2012.

Ms. Leung served as the non-executive director of New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc (LON:NTLG) from June 2016 to January
2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lam Wai Kit Ricky

Mr. Lam Wai Kit Ricky, aged 44, has been serving as the
financial controller of the Company since July 2021. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lam served as a finance manager
in Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0025)
from July 2019 to December 2020 where he was responsible for
overseeing financial reporting and financial management. From
August 2017 to June 2019, he served as a finance manager in
K. Wah International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0173) where
he was responsible for managing overseas property investment
teams.

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master’s degree in
business administration from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Zili

Mr. Wang Zili, aged 60, was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Haian Hengfa Facility on 18 March 2014.
Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2005 and is mainly
responsible for overseeing operational matters related to the
Haian Hengfa Facility. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was
vice chairman and general manager of Beijing Solar Power
Nutritious Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (It R L &S T
2E# R G A7), a deputy general manager of National Youth
Services Centre (FE BV F & R&E A L) and a researcher
of Zhuzhou Electric Locomotive Research Institute (& 28 #k
ME H#EF7Fr), and had worked at Shenzhen Recruitment
Services Company (FIITAA BRTE AF]). Mr. Wang obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Dalian Railway Institute
(REBHEHBZPFT) (how known as Dalian Jiaotong University (A &
X 3@ K E)) in the PRC in July 1983.
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TEERRE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting
and enhancing Shareholder value through good corporate
governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise
the importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal control
procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
so as to achieve effective accountability, and to enable our
Shareholders to evaluate how the principles of the CG Code
(defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the mandatory disclosure requirements and the applicable
code provisions as set out in the section headed “Part 2 —
Principles of good corporate governance, code provisions and
recommended best practices” of the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the
Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the Company
on each of the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Year.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board holds the belief that corporate culture underpins
the long-term business, economic success and sustainable
growth of the Group. A strong culture enables the Company to
deliver long-term sustainable performance and fulfil its role as
a responsible corporate citizen. The Company is committed to
developing a positive and progressive culture that is built on its
purpose, value and strategy.

During the Year, the Company continued to strengthen its
cultural framework by focusing on the following:

e VALUES:

Sustainable development is one of the global trends — the
Company is dedicated to make a substantial contribution
to environmental protection by supporting sustainable
development.

The Company prides itself on keeping its Shareholders
engaged in and informed of the markets and communities
in which the Company operates.

The Company is determined to deliver high-quality
wastewater treatment services to its customers, creating a
pristine water quality domestically in the PRC and develop
and actively implement potential environmental protection-
related industrial chain projects.

The Company strives for working internally and externally
in a collegiate environment based on trust, collaboration
and respect.
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STRATEGIES

1. Pro-actively seeking strategic acquisition, joint venture
establishment and business partnership of other
environmental protection projects in the PRC and
overseas including Indonesia;

2. Upgrading the Company’s facilities in order to
meet the PRC government’s new environmental
policies which will further enhance the Company’s
competitiveness; and

3. Continuing to place investments on new
environmental protection projects by leveraging the
Company’s previous excellent track record and good
relationships with the local governments.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture, and
expects and requires all employees to reinforce it. All of
our new employees are required to attend orientation and
training programs so that they may better understand our
corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant
laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In
addition, the Company will from time to time invite external
experts to provide training to our management personnel
to improve their relevant knowledge and management
skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the
purpose, values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board
sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by
the Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s
business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s
financial results and performance and approving its interim
and annual results upon the review and recommendation of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”);
approving the appointment or re-appointment of the Board
members upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”);
approving the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”)
upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”), deciding all
significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the
Group’s corporate governance, and all other functions reserved
to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”). The Board may from time to time
delegate certain functions to the Senior Management if and
when considered appropriate. The Senior Management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies
and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time
to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.
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Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Details” of this annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman’), is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an ED.
He is also a substantial Shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), is
the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the NED. Mr.
Chan Kwan owns 20% of the issued shares of a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses development,
formulation of strategies and are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.
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The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an
independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conducts and scrutinise the Company’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high
standard of financial and other mandatory reporting of the
Board as well as providing a balance in the Board in order to
effectively exercise an independent judgement on the corporate
actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest
and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the
number of INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board
members; and (i) at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the INEDs have been
independent and met the independent guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against
the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored-
made induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and business and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities
under the statutes and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.
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The Company from time to time provides briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they
have been requested to provide the Company with their training
records. According to the training records maintained by the
Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr.
Radius Suhendra, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Mr. Chan Pak
Lam Brian, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy has attended seminars/conference/
forums and/or read newspapers, journals and materials relating
to the economy, general business, corporate governance and
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to all
Directors at least 14 days in advance. For additional Board
meetings which require discussion and resolution of significant
issues arising from the operations of the Company, notice is
given in a reasonable time in advance. Before each Board
meeting, a draft agenda is sent to all Directors at least three
days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to allow
the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that is
required for discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable
the Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising at the
Board meetings and to make informed decisions, Board papers
together with all appropriate and relevant information in relation
to the matters of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days
or such other period as agreed before each Board meeting.
All Directors should have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary (“Company Secretary”) with a view to
ensuring that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible
for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to the Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for the Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing Rules,
any Directors and their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from deliberating
and voting on resolutions approving such transactions and are
not to be counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) and four Board meetings were held. The table
below sets out the attendance by the Directors of these
meetings:
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RAFE  B8BIT-RARRBRRBFAKR
E(RRAFAENEOREFEEE -
TRENEFHFEZFGH BN

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEEERE
FERHESRERY
Board
Name Meetings AGM
e ETggE RRBEFA®
EDs HITES
Chau On Ta Yuen A%z E IR 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan PR E 4/4 1/1
Radius Suhendra #R A 0/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny BB A 3/4 1/1
NED FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian BR A8 AR 3/4 1/1
INEDs BYFBITES
Ng Chung Yan Linda HE B 4/4 1/1
Ng Man Kung Rt 3/4 1/1
Leung Bo Yee Nancy REE 3/4 11

Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the
INEDs without the presence of the other Directors during the
Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination committee (or
the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The
Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and the policy specifies that in designing
the composition the Board, Board diversity shall be considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In accordance with the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable
objectives are as below:

1.1 Recruitment and selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. In particular, when identifying potential
candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee and
the Board will, among others, (i) consider the current level
of representation of different genders on the Board and
the senior management when making recommendations
for nominees as well as succession planning to the Board
and senior management; and (ii) consider the criteria
that promotes diversity by making reference to the code
of practices on employment published by the Equal
Opportunities Commission from time to time.

1.2 The Nomination Committee will discuss and where
necessary, agree annually on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to
the Board for adoption. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.

1.3 The ultimate decision will be based on merit against
objective criteria and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, taking into account
the corporate strategy and business operations of the
Company.
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1.4 The Board is also committed to having a Board consisting
of more than one gender. The Board should consist of
at least one Director of a different gender who genuinely
possesses the necessary skKills, experience and calibre
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Board aims
to ensure that there is at least one Director of a different
gender on the Board and that this is maintained in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

1.5 In order to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will propose a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

The Board considered that the aforementioned measurable
goals have been achieved satisfactorily during the Year
and the Board will continue to review the relevant goals
from time to time to ensure its progress for achieving such
goals.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the implementation and effectiveness of
this policy on an annual basis, discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval. As at the date of this annual
report, the diversity of the Board is illustrated as below. During
the year, the Board comprises eight Directors, two of whom are
female. The Board targets to maintain at least the current level
of female representation, with the ultimate goal of achieving
gender parity. Further details on the biographies and experience
of the Directors are set out on page 59 to page 67 of this annual
report.
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Age Group
F iR
30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 60 or above

305% £395% 4075% 2495k 505% £5975% 605k = UL £
Name of Director EENUA
Chau On Ta Yuen B%iER 4
Chan Kwan =2 4
Radius Suhendra BREX A 4
Chau Chi Yan Benny BEA 4
Chan Pak Lam Brian CRER 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda mEER 4
Ng Man Kung Rt v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy REE v
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Professional Experience
Finance/ wastewater
Accounting Law Banking Insurance treatment Manufacturing
SR/ g5t yE |1 RE BKEE BE
Name of Director EENE
Chau On Ta Yuen BARER v
Chan Kwan BE v
Radius Suhendra HE v
Chau Chi Yan Benny FIEA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian B A AR 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda mER v
Ng Man Kung Rt v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2 Ef v
Education Background
HEER
Accountancy Science Business Law Arts Communication
it NE [5ES Ve X8 g2
Name of Director i
Chau On Ta Yuen BRER v
Chan Kwan BE v
Radius Suhendra HEA 4
Chau Chi Yan Benny [SEUN v
Chan Pak Lam Brian IR M v
Ng Chung Yan Linda mEBR v
Ng Man Kung RXH v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EH v
During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed RAFE RELZESCCRIEETESH
the structure and composition of the Board, and is of the ZRENMEK TRAEZTSHEEES
opinion that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the G MEBEZAES AL SEHNLER &
experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and ¥ AE R AEARR B RIFFKFLE -
fields can enable the Company to maintain high standard of
operation.
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GENDER DIVERSITY AT WORKFORCE LEVELS

The gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management)
for the Year is approximately Male: Female = 6: 1. For further
details of gender ratio together with the relevant data, please
refer to the disclosure in the environmental, social and
governance report of the Company as set out on pages 18
to 58. Our approach for talent recruitment and retention is
to employ a diverse team that works together collaboratively
and encourage differences and individuality in employees with
respect to equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination.
Notwithstanding this fact, with a view to enhancing efficiency,
we have not set a measurable objective for achieving gender
diversity at the workforce level. The Company is determined to
commit to the meritocratic and diverse approach which provides
equal consideration and opportunities to all qualified candidates
regardless of gender in terms of hiring and promotion process.
During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and the results were
considered to be satisfactory.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and assumed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not vested in
any member of the Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman,
is responsible for business development and formulation
of strategies of the Group while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, serving as the
chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and considering any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services and
reporting the same to the Board, and identifying and
making recommendations on any matters in respect
of which it considers that an action or improvement is
needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination
where more than one audit firm is involved;

o discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior
Management where necessary);

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and financial statements, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;
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discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the Senior Management to ensure that
the Senior Management has performed its duties in
establishing and maintaining effective systems, including
matters on adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the Senior
Management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by such auditor to the
Senior Management about the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and the Senior
Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor’'s management
letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters and ensuring that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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° establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns,
in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and the Directors;

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report;

o reviewing on-going connected transactions of the
Company and ensuring compliance with the terms of
approval by the Shareholders;

° reviewing the findings of internal investigations and
the Senior Management’s responses in relation to any
suspected fraud or irregularities or failures of internal
controls or infringement of laws, rules and regulations; and

° considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
whereat the Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the
audited consolidated financial results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021; (ii) the unaudited consolidated
financial results of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2022; (iii) the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and (iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.
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The Board had no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s
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EEeHERZEGRARABIER

view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of A% EFIE - T2 BT MRENE I
the independent auditor of the Company. mEF -

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HEEBERE
H®E BERHEESRERE
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hEExt 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung R H LA 1/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REEZT 2/2
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHER®

The

Remuneration Committee was established with written

terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Ng Man Kung, serving as the chairman, Ms. Ng Chung
Yan Linda and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and Mr. Chan Pak

Lam

Brian, the NED. The principal responsibilities of the

Remuneration Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the Senior Management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing a
remuneration policy;

reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual EDs and the Senior Management
and such packages include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the NEDs;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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o reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs
and the Senior Management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to the dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements
for the Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were
held whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board for consideration, among others,
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the Senior
Management. The attendance of individual members was set
out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEBERE
%A FERHEESRERE
Mr. Ng Man Kung R AE 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BB Xt 2/2
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian PR 8 PR 5 A 1/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REELT 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man
Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and two EDs, namely Mr.
Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen serving as the chairman. The principal responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board;

o assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company and
Directors’ nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing such Board diversity policy, and the progress
in achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief
executives.
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During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were
held whereat the Nomination Committee, among others, (i)
assessed the independence of the INEDs; (i) recommended
to the Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the
retiring Directors as Directors at the 2022 AGM,; (iii) reviewed
the structure, size and diversity of the Board; (iv) reviewed the
Board diversity policy; (v) reviewed the continuation in service of
director reaching the age of 70; and (vi) considered the renewal
of service agreement or appointment letter of certain directors.
The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.

RAFEAN BERITMAREEES S
& ORAZEgRgRLEEHPBRE) ()F
BN TESTNB LM () EBE
FeERN_ZE__FREFBAFAS L
BENZEMARTEZSAZEE (VB
EZgRBE RERZTL (VBRTE
EEMZTEBRE VERFRIORE
ERERBHEBEL RVIZREHNE T
EENRBHEIEZETE - TERETE
RIK BRI BN -

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HESERE
£ FERLEESRRY
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BATERLE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan PR k& 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung RX#te4t 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hERExt 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REBRUL 1/2

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which aims to:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

- ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

- ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.
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CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria
in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

- character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

- willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

- requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent by reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

- Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board;

- any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning; and

- such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in above paragraph of “CRITERIA”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company (including but not limited to ensuring
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for
directorship and the candidate shall provide his/
her written consent (i) to be appointed as a Director,
and (i) to the public disclosure of his/her personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for
the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing for
election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the above paragraph of
“CRITERIA” to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters

relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.
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()  Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting of
the Company.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring
Director’s overall contribution and service to the
Company, including his/her attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and his/her level of participation and performance on
the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Director continues
to meet the criteria as set out in the above section
headed “CRITERIA”.

(iv)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of the Director at
the general meeting.

(v)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for re-election at any general meeting.

REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i)
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both
current regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice, and (ii) the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and business needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the
CG Code and the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the
Audit Committee to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Company as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee has, amongst other matters,
reviewed this corporate governance report in discharge of its
corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance with the
Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for the term of three years
in respect of their appointment as NED or INED (as the case
may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries other than contracts or letters of appointment
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director will
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of
the meeting at which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-
election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,

(@) the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general
meetings elect any person to be a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

However, any Director who fills a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the following general meeting of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are
set out in note 10 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the Senior Management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Details” in this annual report for the Year by band
is set out below:

AR N
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M) ZFH T

Number
Remuneration band (in HK$) of individuals
48 Bl (8 7T) A"
Nil to 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 1 (Note i &)
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,00121,500,000 1

Note: Including a former member of the Senior Management
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker
Tilly”) in respect of the auditing services for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$1,210,000 and in respect of the non-
auditing services for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$390,000. The non-auditing services rendered related to
review of financial information in the circular of the Company
dated 29 August 2022 in relation to disposal of a subsidiary and
the performance of agreed-upon procedures on interim financial
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of Baker Tilly as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2023 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs,
results and cash flows for the Year and are properly prepared
on a going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements as well as accounting and financial
reporting standards. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties which may affect the Group’s business or
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In addition, Baker Tilly has stated in the independent auditor’s
report its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged its overall responsibility to ensure
that sound and effective risk management and internal controls
are maintained, while the senior management of the Group is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement an
internal controls system to manage risks. A sound system of
risk management and internal controls is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Group
has established a risk management and internal control
systems. Different functions and procedures of the systems are
responsible by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee,
the management of the Group and the internal control review
team. The system monitors risks of the Group including, but
not limited to, operational, financial, reporting and compliance
risks. The system also aims at covering Environmental Social
and Governance (“ESG”) related risk factors in order to govern
the identified ESG risks to the businesses and provide a robust
monitoring system in all aspects. We strive to constantly
enhance the system and expand the coverage of the risk factors
in a feasible way.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management
(the “ERM”) framework in order to implement effective risk
management efforts. Our ERM framework comprises two
key elements, namely risk management structure and risk
management process. It defines a simple and clear risk
management structure as well as the responsibilities as below.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
(the “ERM system”). The Board oversees the ERM system,
assesses and evaluates the Group’s business strategies and
risk tolerance. The Board reviews, with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, at least annually the effectiveness of the ERM
system and monitors the ERM system in an on-going manner.

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk
management and internal control after the Board. It assists
the Board in overseeing the Group’s ERM system by providing
support and advice, including on-going monitoring of the
execution of risk management processes, reviewing the Group’s
risk register as well as reviewing and approving the internal
control review plan and results.

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is
responsible for identifying and monitoring the risks relevant
to the Group during daily operations, including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. The
Management reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the risks identified and their changes. The Management is also
responsible for developing appropriate internal control measures
to mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve material internal
control defects.

The Group has established the internal audit function and the
scope of work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM
system. The scope of the risk management and internal control
review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The internal audit function is able to communicate with the Audit
Committee directly regarding the results of its review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes.
Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthens the understanding of risk management such
that all employees can understand and report various risks
they have identified in a timely manner. It enhances the Group’s
ability to identify and manage risks.

Assess risks
identified
S E R R R

Define risks
universe
FER bR EE

Identify
risks
Gl

To identify and prioritise material risks throughout the Group,
the Management communicates with each operating function,
collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom
to top, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. After identifying all relevant risks, the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritises the risks. Appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and
the changes of risks are monitored in an on-going manner.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

° Establish clear internal control policies and procedures,
and clearly define the responsibilities, authorities and
accountabilities of each key position;

° Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s
requirements on integrity and ethical value to all staff;

o Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage
employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

° Establish appropriate level of information technology to
assess rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive
information; and

° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including
reporting channel and responsible person of disclosure,
unify response to external enquiries and obtain advice
from professional financial adviser or the Stock Exchange if
necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policies and procedures,
including those related to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance. The Board has considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions during the review of the
effectiveness of the ERM system.

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies
established by the Board, the Management communicates with
each operating function, and collects significant risk factors
that affect the Group from bottom to top. The Group has
established a risk register to record the risks identified, and the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and develops appropriate internal control measures to
mitigate the risks identified.
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During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of
the Group’s risk management structure and procedures and
submitted a risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit
Committee, including a three-year internal control review plan,
to enable the Board and the Audit Committee to effectively
monitor the major risks of the Group and understand how the
Management responds to and mitigates the risks.

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal
control department internally. Instead, the Group engaged
an external internal control consulting company, Conesgo
Consulting Group Limited, to conduct an assessment and
evaluation on the effectiveness of internal control measures and
systems of the Group. Certain internal control enhancement
suggestions have been identified and the Management has
established action plans for improving the internal control
effectiveness accordingly. An internal control review report has
been provided to the Audit Committee which has also been
reported to the Board about the findings and improvement
measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during
the Year and the Board considers that the ERM system to be
adequate and effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP TREZEERE

Our risk management process has identified the following as FH I E B ERE R & AEE 2 A
major risks of the Group and their changes. TxERREREZ L -

Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes

[ B it TERBRERER - X(4

New investments in ~ The Group has invested in the development 1. Carry out thorough Decreased

Bangka, Indonesia

HEAMEMNH K E

of a new biomass power plant in Bangka,
Indonesia with a capacity of 10 megawatts

(the “Bangka Power Plant”) to generate
electricity for sale to PT PLN (Persero), an
Indonesia government-owned corporation. The
construction of the Bangka Power Plant may
not be completed successfully or may not meet
the expected standard. The operation of the
Bangka Power Plant may not be successful
due to the potential insufficiency of biomass
raw material, incapability of the new staff in the
Bangka Power Plant or other unknown factors.

FEERINEAMERELRR—BEEEAR
OKEMTENELER(BMBRER))
NHEENZEHEE % AFIPT PLN (Persero) ©
055 R R R R 0 B8 59 K T T R 3k R
VENEBREE - AREMERM B EES
R AMSBREFMFEIMENTRIEMEK
AAZ ANBSEERNEETEISRY o

feasibility studies on the
Bangka Power Plant project

1. HUAMSBEHEEETE
AR TR %E

2. Monitor closely the
construction progress by
industry experts

3. Hiring professional
consultant to monitor the
operation and conduct
training for new staff

e

REEXEREREEMN
ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂuM

4. Negotiate with local
suppliers to enter into long-
term purchase agreements
to ensure sufficiency of the
biomass raw material

4 BERERETIESE
Bipsh - BRENERHH
R E

BRRRERERLH

Wb

The new power plant
in Bangka, Indonesia
has entered the final
preparatory stage.

It is making good
progress despite

the delay caused by
the pandemic. The
Group has reached a
consensus about the
electricity sale with the
local government. The
Bangka Power Plant

is expected to provide
electricity to the state
grid at a fixed rate for
a 25-year term starting
from 2023, according
to the power supply
agreement with PT PLN
(Persero).

MNEBNERARNTE
BEEASEERR

B BARRBEREA
TR EERERRT o
AEBEEEE KT
EEHREMEE B
¥ EPT PLN (Persero)
MESHE  BNe%
ERMESHE-_S==F
EAESMSBE  LETE
BRRABERESAHEE -
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
[ k& ft TERBRERER X[
Biofuel business in The Group’s biomass power generation 1. Control production cost Decreased
Jambi, Indonesia business in Indonesia is temporarily to increase product
suspended. The Group is commencing the competitiveness. L
biofuel pellet/wood pellets manufacturing
EIEEEMEMIE  business for export in Asian countries such 1. BHIEERA EME®R  Biofuel pellet
) as Indonesia and Korea. Since the relevant BES o operation in Indonesia
business is in its initial stage, the relevant commenced its wood
business transformation may not be successful. 2. Proactively promote pellet production
biofuel pellet/wood pellets business in 2021 and
AEERORREENELTEBERER products to Indonesiaand  has been generating
BEMRE - SELRARENRBRE /KB other Asian countries. revenue since 2021.
KAEEER  RHE  BEETEMNERLER -
HREREBRTERE HENEBELE 2 BERHERGMEEE HEEDBHNEKEER
P reny - BEMRERE,/KBRN BERZZ-FHEK
Em e BMRAEESE VB
Z_—ERBEEKRA
Credit Customers or counterparties of the Group are 1. Frequently communicate Unchanged
local government authorities. Payment from with customers to follow up
=8 them could be longer than the credit period the outstanding balance mEq

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

granted to them due to the complexity of their
internal administrative procedures. The Group
might suffer from a financial loss or liquidity
difficulty in the case of delay in payment.

SENEFIHFAIRELBRFHA - RE
AMTHEA 2EME  REZNRALER
BYREZEES - AREXER Hmﬁ R
RBBERIRPECHE -
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1. BRERFER URE
EERE

i—* =]
]
mﬁ /E’E

2. Maintain sufficient cash flow

to avoid liquidity problem

2. HRARMBAERENE
ERBELHE

Sk Regularly perform

impairment review to assess

the recovery of account
receivables and provide
sufficient impairment to
avoid over-statement of
balance

3. TEHETREMFTE
& U BR 3% 2 AT el 44
R AR ERENE E
2 RREH
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
[ k& ft TERBRERER - 2[4
Pricing and cost The Group operates the wastewater treatment 1. Negotiate the water tariffs Decreased
recovery facilities at a pre-determined tariff rate with the local government to

specified at the time the Build, Operate and compensate the increased b

Transfer (BOT) agreement is entered into. costs of operation

The circumstances of tariff adjustment have The Group has reached
EERKAHE also specified that the Group has only limited 1. EEWHRFHEKEAEE  an agreement with

ability to change/renegotiate the tariffs. The
increase in operating costs due to an increase
in utilisation of the wastewater treatment
facilities might not be fully compensated, and
the Group could suffer from loss or decrease in
profitability.

EEZTIER
%Rimﬁ”“
BRNRAEEEE /EF 2
RoREMERSTKERRBE
AEMTRE LT BEHE
EXERRBIRD -

CEERBRBONHEETE
BIRKERELE KEHEEYL
ZKBHOENE
MZEEMK
A &ERE

2EKAEM

2. On-going cost control
to avoid unnecessary
spending

2. BEETRAZHAESR
T BHRX

3. Negotiate with supplier to
minimise the increase in
costs

3. HEREABESERIK
ZLViEﬂJD%E

BRRRERERLH

the Administrative
Committee of Jiangsu
Province, China in July
2021 for an upward
adjustment to the water
tariffs of Rugao Hengfa
facilities to compensate
the increased costs of
operation.

RZZ-Z—§tAfHp
Jﬁé%ﬁakm%
% DAMRBERE
WKF WHEAEE
EEMAREM -
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly when it is
the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as
follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as
financial reporting, public announcements/circulars and its
website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs, so that only the EDs, the Company Secretary and
the financial controller of the Company (the “Financial
Controller”) are authorised to communicate with parties
outside the Group.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (“Ms. Tung”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 30 October 2021.

Ms. Tung was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Tung has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Lam
Wai Kit Ricky, the Financial Controller.

Ms. Tung had complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meeting under
the memorandum of association of the Company and the
Articles of Association (the “M&A”). Shareholders who wish to
make proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to do so in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

AR N
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General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company, which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist holds as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company, which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him/her/
them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to the Directors or management of the Company.
Such questions, requests and comments can be addressed to
the Company by mail to its principal place of business in Hong
Kong, presently at Unit 2304, 23rd Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by email to ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings or change of correspondence address or dividend
instructions by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, which
has been appointed by the Company to deal with Shareholders
for share registration and related matters.
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POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

With effect from 1 January 2022, the Company has adopted
the policy on obtaining independent views and input. In
accordance with this policy, the Board, Board committees or
individual Directors may seek such independent professional
advice, views and input as considered necessary to fulfil their
responsibilities and in exercising independent judgement when
making decisions in furtherance of their Directors’ duties at
the Company’s expense (the “Mechanism”). The Mechanism
is established to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board and should be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

Independent professional advice shall include legal advice and
advice of accountants and other professional financial advisers
on matters of law, accounting, tax and other regulatory matters.

In the event that independent professional advice, views and
input are considered necessary, the Board, Board committees
or individual Directors shall communicate with the Company
Secretary to start the Mechanism, providing background and
details of the relevant incidents and/or transactions, and the
issues involved which would require independent views and
input. They may direct any questions, queries, concerns or
specific advice to be sought to the Company Secretary who will
then contact the Company’s professional advisers (including, but
not limited to, legal advisers, accountants, independent auditor,
internal control adviser) or other independent professional
parties to obtain such independent professional advice within a
reasonable period of time.

Any advice obtained through the Mechanism shall be duly
documented and made available to other members of the
Board.

Despite having obtained any information or advice from the
Chairlady/Chairman and/or any independent professional
advisers through the Mechanism, the Directors are expected to
exercise independent judgement in forming their decisions.

Also, the senior management of the Company are, from time
to time, brought into formal and informal contact at Board
meetings and other corporate events. The Board has full access
to all information provided by the senior management of the
Company it deems appropriate for the purposes of fulfilling its
role.

The Company has reviewed and considered the implementation
of the Mechanism to be effective during the Year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Company’s business
performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to
the Shareholders and the investment community mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports), announcements and circulars, the AGMs and the
EGMs that may be convened, as well as by all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications made available by the Company on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is summarised as
below:

° The Company will assign dedicated employee(s) to be in
charge of ensuring effective and timely dissemination of
information to Shareholders.

° The Company will provide Shareholders with ready access
to understandable information about the Company.

° The Company will take steps to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and other stakeholders.

° The Company will facilitate Shareholders’ participation in
annual general meetings and make available the chairmen
of the board committees and advisory panel(s) (if any),
appropriate management executives, auditors at annual
general meetings to answer questions from Shareholders.

° Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions,
communicate their views on various matters affecting
the Company, request for publicly available information
and provide comments and suggestions to directors or
management of the Company through the prescribed
channel mentioned below.
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In accordance with the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, the
Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include (i) the publication of interim and
annual reports and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other
announcements; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated
and key information of the Group available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s
website offering communication channel between the Company
and its stakeholders; and (v) the Company’s share registrars
in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share
registration matters. Having considered the multiple channels
of communication mentioned above, the Company is satisfied
that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been properly
implemented during the year of 2022 and such policy remains
effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
“‘new M&A”) at the 2022 AGM which was held on 2 June 2022,
so as to, among others, comply with the updated Listing Rules
and CG code which came into effect on 1 January 2022. The
new M&A is available on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of
wastewater treatment services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the generation of electricity
by biomass power plants in Jambi, the Republic of Indonesia
(“Indonesia”). The principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out on pages 140 to
287 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company
intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or
distribution of its net profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate
and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

3. The Board has the full discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), all applicable laws and regulations and the
factors set out below.
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4.  The Board shall also take into account the following 4.

factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends:

o financial results;

° cash flow situation;

o business conditions and strategies;

° expected future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o interests of Shareholders;

° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

5. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and 5.

the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
for a financial year or period as follows:

o interim dividend;

° final dividend;

° special dividend; and

° any distribution of net profits that the Board may
deem appropriate.

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the 6.

Shareholders’ approval.

7. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of 7.

cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

8. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall 8.

revert to the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association, and all applicable laws and regulations.
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DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid or declared for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 (2021: HKO0.5 cents).

During its meeting held on 30 March 2023, the Board has
resolved not to recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2021: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the
potential future development of the Group’s business is set
out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 8 and in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 17 of this
annual report.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
end of the Year and up to the date of this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 17 of this
annual report.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report

;0
BE-_E-_—_FA=tHLtNEAHE
KNS ERFPERE(ZCE—_—F:05%
i) -
R-ZEBE-_=F=-A=+HL£THe% L
BEECRARNAEEREZHRATMAR
B (ZE—F )

EBEOE

REBARFEE 2 F 5D BEEANEE N E
EAREBERZBAANRAFRS
BEBAZERBERFIOEITAZERE
A B

BRAFEARENEEAREES H
BELTTARTEAKREZ2EREM -

AEBERBMBERRABEENANFE
RIOMBRAFREIZNVTAZERE
A B AT



PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group, together with the Group’s internal control, is set out
on pages 86 to 93 of this annual report. The financial risks are
covered in note 33 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report. A more comprehensive
analysis of the Group’s risk factors (excluding the operation
of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power
plants by a subsidiary of the Company in Indonesia, which the
Group acquired in late 2016) is set out on pages 29 to 46 of
the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to the operation of
the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants
in Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s
circular dated 24 August 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations of
Hong Kong, the PRC and Indonesia by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the
Group are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 18 to 58 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 18 to 58 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years is set out on page 276 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its annual general meeting on Thursday,
1 June 2023 (the “AGM”), the notice of which will be published
and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 29 May 2023 to Thursday, 1 June 2023
(both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the AGM, the non-registered Shareholders must
lodge all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable
to a customer in Indonesia and two customers which are local
government authorities in the PRC for the wastewater treatment
business. They jointly accounted for 90.7% of the Group’s
revenue, where the customer in Indonesia accounted for 58.4%
of the Group’s revenue and the two local government authorities
in the PRC accounted for 22.7% and 9.6% of the Group’s
revenue, respectively. The purchases attributable to the largest
supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for 10% and 25%, respectively of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in
note 29 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$215.8
million (31 December 2021: HK$238.4 million). This amount
included the Company’s share premium account of HK$391.9
million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: HK$391.9
million), which may be distributed provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the
date of this report:

The EDs

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N

CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N
Radius SUHENDRA

CHAU Chi Yan Benny (“Mr. Benny Chau”)

The NED
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ?

The INEDs

NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) ~/"N

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) A/"R\N

LEUNG Bo Yee Nancy (“Ms. Leung”) A/"N

A = member of the Audit Committee
R = member of the Remuneration Committee
N = member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Radius
Shuhendra, Mr. Ng and Ms. Ng shall retire at the 2023 AGM
and all of them, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms.
Ng, Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, an annual written confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report, the Company considers all of them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
59 to 67 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming 2023 AGM has a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company that is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted
during or at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations
amounting to RMBO0.4 million in the PRC (2021: nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.
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The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September
2014. During the Year, no options were granted, exercised or
cancelled, 500,000 options were lapsed and as at 31 December
2021, no options were outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Share Offer (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).

The options granted to a former employee shall vest over a
period of three years commencing on the date of grant. The
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.50 per Share, as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange. Those options are exercisable
from 14 April 2017 to 13 April 2026. All 500,000 options of such
a former employee were lapsed on 31 October 2021 due to his
resignation on 30 September 2021.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as
follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board
may determine to any full-time or part-time employees,
potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
(the “Eligible Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the
Shares in issue immediately upon completion of the Share
Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and approximately
7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options
that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with

(@) any Shares issued upon exercise of options under
the Share Option Scheme or options under other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible
Participant;
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(b) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme or options under other schemes granted to
that Eligible Participant; and

(c) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of
options under the Share Option Scheme or options
under other schemes which had been granted to and
accepted by that Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to:

() the issue of a circular by the Company to the
Shareholders, which shall comply with the Listing
Rules; and

(i)  the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting
at which that Eligible Participant and his/her/its
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) shall
abstain from voting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an
INED, or any of their respective associates, would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in
excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the options
shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders with
such person/entity and his/her/its core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting in
favour at the general meeting.
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Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, or any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval
of the INEDs (excluding the INED who is the grantee of an
option).

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES
MUST BE EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s
offer document, each of the grantees to whom an option
has been granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be entitled to exercise his/her/its option in the following
manner:

(@ up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the period
commencing on the first anniversary of the date on
which such option is granted (the “Commencement
Date”) and ending on the expiry of the period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee (the
“Option Period”), within which the option may be
exercisable provided that the Option Period shall not
exceed a period of ten years commencing on the
Commencement Date;

(b) up to 66% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the second anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period; and

(c) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the third anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period.
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VESTING PERIOD

There is no minimum period (i.e., vesting period) for which
an option granted must be held before it can be exercised
unless otherwise imposed by the Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within
the time period specified in the relevant offer document.
A sum of HK$1.00 is payable as consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
Eligible Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its
committee) in its sole discretion, save that such price shall
not be less than the highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities (the “Business Day”);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.

2022 Annual Report

iR

BRIFEERITHMMAE  BEAR
REBREREEEATEZAIL
ARANREHR(BIBEDR) -

EMR RO R R EMRR

BHBRENENVAEBEREN
XHHEENMRAER - EREL
% - E1.00BTTIERKE -

EETERMEE

RUTAER2EENZNHBIRE
MEBTEEREHESS(REZ
ER)2REBET HEABEBREITE
BERATEEKSE

@ BEEMARBZAADE
FEFXFEFHAT (8K
1) B 32 P79 K ¥R 8 2% B 91 0
AR IE U 7 A

(b) EEFRLAHAAMEZERR
R BRBERMAIIEOKMDIE
A FHEHE: &

) MRMHWEE -



9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 26 September 2014,

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option granted with details set out under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii)
require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing Shares during the Year and
no such agreement subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the Year or at the end of the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable a Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of the Shares or any shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out
in notes 10 and 11, respectively to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.

2\ x

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

9. MR #EaHE a0 82 AR

BREASEE _T-—NOFHHA
T+ RBREFHOFHEMER AR

B R #8910 5

AR EEREFS I —SHAFL 2D
REBRESN  ARARHET L EMNR
SHBHEMOSSHATEERARTA
BATR D ¢ (i) BRARA R AL K& X
AR EERARARAFREETRNZ
T - AARFERERINAFEE A%
Fihaz o

EERARGHRH

B E XSt & — &P i B & 51
RAR S EEFKNERBRAEE KF
REMBSEGETLEMETH  BESE
EAHEBARNDIARB HAAMEAME
ANERNERBRD R EEEMES

TEaSY

REAFERN > LARRIREAMB AR ER
SEMERRHEFTEL BT LHF
EEBRITHRAENBRTESNRHEEH
BR 51 ©

EEFHRIRESHFMAL
REFERN EEFHEAERRH N

ANTHFHFB DR ERAFERLE S T BE R
R A E10K%11 -

BERRERERAT TECCFFR

119



<><>

\

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

Name of Directors/Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest

Number of Shares Held

FLFEEREETHRARBRELF
REH#HBEEMNEG - HRRBRER
fHEPHEIERRE

R-ZE-_—F+_-_fF=+—H AR A=
ERHERITRABRARA K HETAE
BEBE(TEREBEMNESNEZTFK
HEEM(RERBEKRG D EXVIH
Hm - HERDREREEZIRES: ()VRE
BERBPEENEXVIEETRSS 3 A A
SARNFRRBRIMERZSIAR (BERK
ERBEBHFRAERIOZEZFHRXHEE
ESREBEBNERZIAR) (i) B IE
BHEN B E G H3521% B & 2R % IE
Frig & e ey 25 K &2 0 S (i) IR I A2
EFRIZBAE AR R KR FT AR S K
KRBT

A2 BUE {E0.000178 7T 7 % 38 A {0
ZKEm

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding Interest
in the Company®

EX /BETBAEEZ B/ EntE FERGEE REAQARABREHSLEI LW
Mr. Chau Interest in a controlled corporation 225,000,000M 20.32%
A%HE XEEERER
Mr. Chan Interest in controlled corporations 353,200,000@) 31.90%
BREE XELERER
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Notes:

(1) Wealthy Sea which held 225,000,000 Shares is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chau, an executive Director and the Chairman and Ms.
Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively.

2 Everbest Environmental which held 337,500,000 Shares was owned
as to 50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”),
Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan, an executive Director and the CEO,
respectively. Mr. Chan is the sole director of Everbest Environmental.
Ms. Wong is the mother of all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr.
Brian Chan, the NED. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares
in Kingdrive Limited which in turn owns 100% of the issued shares in
Carlton Asia Limited (“Carlton Asia”). Carlton Asia held 15,700,000
Shares and is accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of
Mr. Chan.

(3)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

(4)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares,
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or
entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, the following entities or persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were
deemed or taken to have an interest and/or a short position
in the Shares or the underlying Shares, which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which was recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

2w
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(2)  Everbest Environmental # 7%337,500,000
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H50% ~ 30% F20% o PR 4t 4 A& Everbest
Environmental FIlE—Z % - T X4+ AR
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& o BR 4L 4 I #% A Kingdrive Limited 20%
B2 1T IR 1D - 3% & 7] # A Carlton Asia
Limited ([Carlton Asial)100% & % 77 &
7 © Carlton Asia #7515,700,0000% i% 17 &
BRIRBREEMNIERITS ©

@ LimBERMDANGERS -

4 ZIHEDERTE-_=_F+=-A=+—H
B3 77 A% 19 81 1,107,300,000 BEIEH »
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Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

AR A 7 A E {E0.000178 JT /) % 38 A 17

2w
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total Company®
EARLDT R E
REMZ /28 LTY8 $:3:3:1 FrEROEE @t #aaate
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 337,500,000(1 337,500,000 30.48%
Enftn
Ms. Wong Beneficial interest 20,415,0000
Tat Enftn = 373,310,000 33.71%
Interest in controlled corporations 352,895,000 _|
RELBER
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 15,395,000@ ]
REREE XREEER = 373,310,000 33.71%
Interest held by spouse 357,915,000 _]
Be 48 A s 2
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
ki Enftn
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
IERTT Be {35 A 5 2
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 143,300,000 12.94%
Enftn
Notes: B 5 -

(1)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited
(“Hightop”) is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms.
Wong is deemed to be interested in the 337,500,000 Shares and
15,395,000 Shares held by Everbest Environmental and Hightop
respectively pursuant to the SFO. Also, Ms. Wong is beneficially
interested in 20,415,000 Shares.

Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung,
the husband of Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is
deemed to be interested in the 15,395,000 Shares held by Hightop,
337,500,000 Shares deemed to be held by Ms. Wong through
Everbest Environmental and 20,415,000 Shares beneficially owned by
Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.

2022 Annual Report

Everbest Environmental & = & 1% & H R A
A(E&])SH T LT HAB50% At -
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M Everbest Environmental & & I Ff 15 5 £
337,500,000% }%15,395,0008% f& 15 FH % &
W& o T Z 1 75 $220,415,0000% A& 15 o

ST HRERLEREAFON(ELLH
TK) e F c RIEFESFRBEEN - R
AR AR & & AT A #915,395,000
A% B 2« |8 B F & + & 3B Everbest
Environmental £ # & # 337,500,000 3% A% 1%
& * &+ & @ %A §20,415,0008% & ()
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(3)  Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive
Director and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr.
Chau, respectively. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore, deemed to be
interested in the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea controlled
by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

(5)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors were not aware of any entities which or persons (other
than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares, which had been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or were entered in the register kept by the
Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION
SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are
required to participate in the central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully with the
employees once made.
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Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to
their employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia
Labour Law are met. The Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia
estimate their liability for employee service entitlement benefits
in order to meet and cover the minimum benefits requirement
to be paid to employees under the Indonesia Labour Law. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares
being held by the public) during the Year and up to the date of
this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
ordinary course of business by the Group during the Year are
set out in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off
connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules. Save for disclosed in note 38(a) and (b) to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report, the transactions disclosed in note 38 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report as
related party transactions did not fall under the definition of
“‘connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of
the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an ED and the CEQ), Ms.
Wong, Everbest Environmental (a company owned by Ms.
Wong, Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and
20%, respectively), Mr. Chau (an ED and the Chairman) and
Wealthy Sea (@ company owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr.
Chau and his wife, respectively) (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) executed a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company on 5
September 2014. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition,
each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted with the
Company (for itself and for the benefits of other members of the
Group) that it’/he/she would not, and would procure its/his/her
associates (other than members of the Group) not to, directly
or indirectly, either on its/his/her own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or
acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise, and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) any activity or business which competes
or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of operating wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC by the
Group as described in the Prospectus and any other business
from time to time conducted, carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of the Group or in which any member
of the Group is engaged or has invested or which any member
of the Group has otherwise publicly announced its intention
to enter into, engage in or invest in (whether as principal or
agent and whether undertaken directly or through any body
corporate, partnership, joint venture, or other contractual or
other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders an annual written declaration as to the compliance
with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition during the
Year. The INEDs had reviewed the compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition
and were not aware of the occurrence of any adverse event,
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors is considered to have interests in a business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group and has any other conflicts of interest, as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 37 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report,
no controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance (whether for the provision of services to the Group
or not) to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or
in which he/she is acquitted. In addition, proper insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’
liability has been arranged. The relevant provisions in the
Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability insurance were
in force during the Year and as at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult
their professional advisers.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 185 employees (31
December 2021: 122 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.6
million for FY2022 (FY2021: HK$14.7 million). The remuneration
policy for our Directors, senior management members and
general staff is based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the profit performance of
our Group and the individual performance of our Directors,
senior management members and general staff. The Group
encourages the self-development of its employees and provides
on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible directors and employees of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During FY2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AR N
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 68 to 105 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in
compliance with paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal controls. As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three members, namely Ms. Ng (who
is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ng and Ms.
Leung, all being the INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the Company’s management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the annual audited
consolidated results of the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there has been
no change in Directors’ information since the date of the 2022
interim report of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the
independent auditor of the Group with effect from 26 November
2019. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) was
appointed as the independent auditor of the Company with
effect from 12 December 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been audited by Baker Tilly, which will retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
2023 AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the
Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint
Baker Tilly as the independent auditor of the Company and to
authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 140 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE RS

HERRRERARAIARR
(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)
MEEsTER

FREFFTASRERMOFTRHE -
RBHARMEAMBEREINEARA/E
BHNER ELEHEERMEBTBE
REMBHRRMEABRRETRIEN
BT e ELETREHRERFNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BREHEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BB OMEEARETSTRETER

Revenue and profit from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables

under service concession arrangements

KEZBRBRBHYEFUARBFIURIBRBIFFELH T ERFR#EEFZRA

Refer to notes 4, 56 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

EFEHEEHEREN G4 5K16

We identified recognition of revenue and profit
from construction services and imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements as a key audit matter due to the
significant estimation made by the Group’s
management.

BHY EEEEEEBMEERMG  RMASKER
BB ERWAR TGN AR RS FFELHET
EWHRENEENEWARERERETEE -

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
and profit from construction services and imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements included:

IS HE R K B R R YL WA KOs A &
PR 75 7 5T 4 22 HE T FE W R IR &Y 1 B R B U A ERER
R B

o Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;

e FTENRNE BREFTZHHEBBOTHZE @ A
Al EEEMRMERSTEENEE T
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMRESER

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from construction of biomass
power facilities under the terms of build-operate-
transfer (the “BOT”) arrangement are estimated on a
cost-plus basis in which the construction margin is
estimated with reference to a prevailing market rate
of gross margins of market comparable at the time
of construction. Revenue from construction services
is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of
the construction contract.
MEFEMBRERWFIAEE  BEER — £&
— BR(BOT)ZHIERKEENMEREREHNE
EWANBERMBOE R MERENELZ2ZE
FLLhTémfmﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂiﬁﬁoxa

HRBHEEWAEATIAEDO LA ERRAR -
&%% SEEEMAERESHMFTEKEAD
LI & o

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
and biomass power facilities under the terms of
the BOT arrangement is recognised from time
to time on receivables under service concession
arrangements on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts over the service
concession period at the estimated effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
RBFAFELHF TORERBISSERERA
ffﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂT?K?ﬁ&
EMEBEREOEENSMA - IR RY)IE R
Wt B 80 (4 51 B R A K88 AR 75 45 7T BB eV £ 5T R 2K
e W ARRE -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

HERRRERARAIARR
(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)
@B SH(AF)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES N AEERETETRETER

° Understanding the Group’s estimation of the
construction margin, the available industry
and market data of market comparables at the
time of construction and the involvement of an
independent valuer appointed by the Group for
the revenue from construction services;

e HRKEEZMBHEERA TH E&5E
HEREMNENMGES BERAFSIEALR
MENTEEMSHEER E5ERZENE
SHERD A2

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectives
of the exercise and assessing its valuation
methodology;

e HEBIUINMBEEMNERE - B
EEMERAGEERET L

Nk EEZ

o Assessing the reasonableness of the
percentage-of-completion measured by
reference to the proportion of costs incurred
to date to the estimated total cost of the
construction contract;

e A2 EBLSEELEMALBESAMGTR
AN ENT IS LS EMY:

° Verifying the construction costs incurred during
the year by examining the contracts, invoices,
completion reports and other supporting
documents on a sample basis;

. ﬁﬂ%*%EA% BHE -TIHRENREM

BERANM  REFAELENERKAN:
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMRESER

The Group engages an independent qualified valuer
to access the prevailing market rate of gross margin
of market comparable and the effective interest rate
for service concession arrangements as mentioned
above.

EREEFBEYSERMEMTM ERATE LR
MHENRTHSENERRBETARCHENER
M o

As disclosed in notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognised
revenue and profit from construction services of
HK$114,389,000 and HK$13,479,000, respectively,
and imputed interest income on receivables
under services concession arrangements of
HK$18,258,000 during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MEFEMBEHRERMISRIGMERE  BHE-T ==
FT_A=1T—HIEFE > EEEERAXEER
AR 75 B9 & 2 W A FO& N 9 Rl 2114,389,0007% T K&
13,479,000/ 7T © RIS FF AT L HE T B W R IE S #E
B B A 518,258,000 7T °

Independent Auditor’s Report
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(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES N AEERETETRETER

° Evaluating the estimated total cost of
construction contract by reference to the
signed contracts and approved budgets; and

s ZELEIAANCHERETREZESH
N N D NN

° Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements by benchmarking
against market data.

e UMBEBEREETNMERGHFIFELEETE
WRENEEN BB ANGGERNENE
B
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMRESER

HERRRERARAIARR
(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)
@B SH(AF)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES N AEERETETRETER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WH - BE KRB E TS

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHEENBHEN E4R15

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgements made by the
management in assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”), which is
derived from value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow model.

mY EEEEEREAETARELABM(REE
EENDNATREE(AURRREREREGFE
EREEAESHRSELEXRHE  HMAKY
X BELERXREBREFGETESBEETSFE-

Management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including
the discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and
gross margin, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions, particularly those in
the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).

EREEHYE BMEARBHRENEBE IR
BRALE MEAERRRETEERR  BE
MER BRELEHHENENX - gl xIEY
XEPARARTSHAREEBRAAZTE  LERIHE
JEva e AN ([EDfE 1) &) K 2R 17 35 sk EL A4S B R R o

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Qur procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
included:

B WE BERREORETGHRRNEF
B

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, preparation of the cash flow projections
and involvement of an independent valuer
appointed by the Group;

TH BEEBREFENEREZ(BERERE -
RenEBRANGERNE EEEZRENEY
HEMN2AR)

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity and
assessing its valuation methodology;
AEBILNBEEMNERE  EHREHME
N R E R
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMRESER

An independent qualified professional valuer is
engaged to assess the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

EEERFE RBEYAREREXAEMIAGRSE
AEUMAKREEE -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
impairment loss was recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment after assessing the
recoverable amount of CGU which is principally
engaged in the sales of biofuel business in
Indonesia.
BE_T__F+__A=+—RHLLFE RFKH
CEABUAWEEBARERYE BELREHE
RIEBBEEE MAeELELFEEHNER
ZHEEMRBER -
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(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES N AEERETETRETER

° Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;
AHEREEERAREREENEE T

° Comparing the budgeted sales and gross
margin against historical performance in
respect of the CGU;
BIEEHERENREBTRVETLER:

° Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;

BB eELEUMNERAS R E L ATEA
BRETHEER UG EEENREeRER
A LEREE

o Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
or assumptions (including growth rates and
discount rate) applied in the impairment
assessment; and
AHAEROREREE A AR A BUESRER (2
BERERERF)NEGENL R

° Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions as stated
above and assessed the potential impacts of a
range of possible outcomes.
AEEEER L AARBRRETHRRED
A A ERBENEETE

i
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report

HBRERRERERIAARR
(RASHESEMARIZHARIE)

ERMMFH M B RRRENR
E(#&)

— SHEESFRAeISHAENRYEE
RAEH G A ARBREN S 2
p

- HEZRAFELCESERNR
EUHELER -  RIFAERNET
R MEEAFERFERLER
ERMNBEATHEN  tmAgs
HY EEENKELERNIESE
EXRRE - WREMBA/AFEEK
THEY AU EERHMERE
TRFEEMAEIESEAYBHRRP
MR E - REARENKETRE -
AZMEEERIFERETR - &
e m e E R BA | & B LA
RMEBNFTRE - A KRKER
HBERATEER BB TREFSE

g -

— ESAMBHRRNEBEIIGA
BBMNMAR BREEE UEES
BBEBREETERRZHMEIR -

— 3 BEREANERAXRKAHHOHM
BESERTE  BEENBRIER
DNHGEMBREBRER - M
BREEFENTE - EEMBT
B SEFBERAEZEHEML -

BREMERSIN RMEBEREERT
SMEHE BHHEHLH EAFSH
RE BRRAMERFPINLARE
ZH)E ] B ARBREE ©



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wan Wing Ping.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

Wan Wing Ping
Practicing certificate number P07471
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+ A=+ —HI FE

NOTES 2022 2021
Bt 5 —g=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue EEIA [ 203,659 103,136
Cost of sales &R A (143,090) (49,498)
Gross profit £ 60,569 53,638
Other income and net gains H b ug A R T U 5 7 4,942 4,456
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary PEMBARNEE 36 (359) =
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBEERXT
credit loss model EODEREY ki (2,772) (3,250)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERX (8,509) =
Administrative expenses THRAXZ (30,539) (27,536)
Finance costs B & KA 8 (9,298) (4,408)
Profit before tax B A% A A 9 14,034 22,900
Income tax expense Frs i 12 (16,236) (11,394)
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(ER), & F (2,202) 11,506
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: A N &5 BIEFER
(E18),&mF
Owners of the Company ZN/NECTEZ P =N (3,291) 6,145
Non-controlling interests FE 15 AR B 5 1,089 5,361
(2,202) 11,506
HK cent HK cent
&l oIl
(Loss)/earnings per share (& 18),/ &F 14
— Basic — HK (0.30) 0.55
— Diluted — #58 (0.30) 0.55

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e RkEM2EKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8l 2 — £~ —F - A=+ —HI FZF

2022 2021
—E=-= —EBE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(ER), & F (2,202) 11,506
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hitt2mBIx), WA
income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit T &S EH P EEEmAEL -
or loss:
Actuarial gain of defined benefit AERBABRKEE 2 BE K=
retirement plan 28 754
Items that may be reclassified BERAIBEE T D E B A -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEBIINERELEZEREZR
translation of foreign operations (41,051) 8,813
Reclassification of cumulative exchange BBHEWB AR FREER
reserve to profit or loss upon REEFT»EEER
disposal of a subsidiary (3,693) —
Net fair value loss on debt instrument FREMEEAKRRZEAABES
at fair value through other ENEREIAZAREEBRE
comprehensive income R (1,429) (1,303)
Release on redemption of debt BRZEAEMEENBRZEAN
instrument at fair value through other B EMNESIAKED
comprehensive income - )
Impairment loss for debt instrument FREMEEKEEALER
at fair value through other ENEBLIAE ZRAEEIE
comprehensive income included in
profit or loss 2,381 —
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FREM2E(FAX) WA -
for the year, net of income tax bR FT1S R (43,764) 8,269
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FRAZEGEAX) WALHE
income for the year (45,966) 19,775
Total comprehensive (expense)/income A N&FEEFRNZ2E(FX),/
for the year attributable to: oL
Owners of the Company ZN/NETES P =N (44,365) 13,265
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR #E 2 (1,601) 6,510
(45,966) 19,775
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

As at 31 December 2022 R = EFE - —#F+=-HA=+—H

NOTES 2022 2021
B 5 —E-C —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE 15 64,129 71,490
Receivables under service concession RAEGFTELHETHE
arrangements Ug 5k I8 16 298,498 313,194
Goodwill GRS 17 - =
Debt instrument at fair value through FRHEMEAREZA
other comprehensive income REFENEFIA 18 583 2,012
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1R # #5 Ak ANz 2 89 H b
EHMEE 19 - 14
Prepayments and other receivables T8 1~ SR I8 K Efh FE 45K
b 20 312 341
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITFER 21 - 2,960
363,522 390,011
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 8 4,417 1,973
Trade receivables g 5 MWk E 20 414 73
Receivables under service concession RAGEFT LI THE
arrangements Ug k18 16 28,327 25,559
Prepayments and other receivables TE A SR I8 & Eo A FE M 3R
T8 20 94,360 30,867
Other financial assets at amortised cost  IREEH K RNETE R E A
cRMEE 19 - 5
Restricted bank deposits ZBRHIRITE R 21 5,405 2,960
Time deposits TF 7 K 21 - 12,269
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBEIR® 21 34,611 65,054
167,534 138,760
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables 2 5N IR 22 5,466 3,301
Other payables and accruals H fth P& 3XI8 J FE &
£ A 23 10,126 5,984
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) 8 B 5 3k B 24 90,977 35,207
Borrowings N 25 41,867 35,107
Lease liabilities HEB®E 26 438 472
Income tax payable FEATPTIS AL 6,994 4,972
155,868 85,043
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 11,666 53,717
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 375,188 443,728

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 2022 R=—FE - —F+=-H=+—H

NOTES 2022 2021
Bt 2 -2 —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital % 2 29 111 111
Reserves 1 30 308,389 352,754
Equity attributable to owners of the ARAREBEANEEER
Company 308,500 352,865
Non-controlling interests FE 1 B 2 (5,608) 30,200
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 302,892 383,065
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Amounts due to related parties & 1~ B B 5 FX 3B 24 14,567 4,000
Borrowings EE 25 20,000 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 557 =
Deferred tax liabilities BREHIBEEE 27 22,891 36,620
Provision for major overhauls BERBREEE 28 13,352 18,978
Retirement benefit obligations RRBHNEE 35 929 1,065
72,296 60,663
375,188 443,728

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 287 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau On Ta Yuen

BAZER
Chairman
FE

Chan Kwan
BR &
Executive director

HITEZFE

BRRRERERLH

FUOEBTENHG AN B RRKLEES
MRIZB-=F=A=1+HE#ERKET%
YHTINATRAEE:

TECFER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREERR

At 31 December 2022 R—ZFE - —F+_-_H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

RAAEEAEL
Investment Non-
Share Share Share option Other  Exchange General  revaluation  Accumulated controllng
capital premium eserve Tesere reerve reserve T8Sere losses ~ Sub-total Interests Total

BE  ROEE BREEE 2ER EARE KRR REERRR  ZHER Nt HERER it
HKBOOO  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKG0OD  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TEn S TEn Thn  TEn TEn Thn TEn TEn TEn Thn

(note 30(4) (note 30(B)
(HE30) (308
At 1 January 2021 #o5z-%
-B-A m 408,460 12 (31.476) 3617 24608 146 (60,451) 345,136 30,028 375,164

Proft for the year Emgil
Actuaril gain of defined ~ RERHENRHH2

beneft retrement plan &M% - - - = = S = To4 154 - T4
Exchange diferences ~ BERNEBEL 2

aisng ontranslation of X EE

foreign operations - - - - 7,664 - - - 7,664 1149 8,813
Netfarvalelosson ~ EEAB2ENER

debtnstrumentat far -~ AR EFENER

vavetroughother -~ TEMAREEE

comprehensheincome 5 - - - - - S (1,309) = (1,809 = (1,309
Release onredemption~ EEFREM 2T

of deot instument at -~ WERLAEHE

fairvalue through other ~ MIEBTEEEE

6,145 6,145 5,361 11,506

comprengnsive income - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Tota comprenensie  ER2ENE/
incomellexpense) for the (%) 48
year - - - - 7,604 - (1,298) 6,899 13,265 6,510 19,75
Trangler & - - - - 3044 - 8029 - - -
Shareoptions lapsed ~ EX Mz BRE - = (121 = = = = 11 = S =
Divdends recognisedas BB AR R
disrouton (note 13 B8 (H&13) - 5,3%) - - - - - - (5,3%) S (5,5%)
Diidsnds paidtonon-  EfFRRER
controling interests E&RE - - - - - - - - - (6,338) (6,338)
~ (166 (i) - T - B0 B 638 (147
At 31 December 201~ HZF=-F
t-p=1-A M 391,851 - (31,476) 11,281 27,652 (1,152) 45,402) 352,865 30,200 383,068
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

At 31 December 2022 R=—ZZE - —F+_-_H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLRETARL
Investment Non-
Share Share Other  Exchange General  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
Rx  REE  EtEE  EXERE  -RER REERER  BNEB 0t kERER it
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEn Thn TEn Tin Thn TEn TERL TEn TER
(note 30(A) (note 30(B))
(HzE30(A) (H3E30(B)
At 1 January 2022 R-E_Z%
-A-H 111 391,851 (31,476) 11,281 27,652 (1,15 (45,402 352,865 30,200 383,065
Loss for the year EngE - - - - - - (3,291) (3.291) 1,089 (2209
Actuaral gan of defined ~ REAHEIEEZ
bengfitretiement plan -~ BEME - - - - - - i) %8 - %8
Exchange differences arising £EENEREE?
ontrenglaton of foreign B ZE
operations - - - (38,361) - - - (38,361) (2,690 (41,051)
Disposal of asubsiciary ~ HEMBRA
[note 36) (Rizt36) - - - (3,699) - - - (3,699) - (3,699)
Net far vlle ogs on ERANAENRR
debtinstumentatfar - AREFENER
valug through other IANDAERE
comprehensive income 5 - - - - - (1,429) - (1,42) - (1,429)
Impaiment loss for debt~ EBEHZENE
instrument at fai RArEHENE
value through other BIEZRESE
comprengnsive income - - - - - 2,381 - 2,381 - 2,381
Toi compretersie A2/
(expensel/income Bags
for the year - - - (42,054) - 952 (3,263 (44,365) (1,601) (45,966)
Trangler L3 - - - - 1,650 - (1,650) - - -
Disposal of asubsiciary ~ HEMERT
(note 36) (HE£36) - - - - (3,366) - 3,566 - (3420 (3420)
- - - - e - 1916 - )
31 December 2022 St
+Zh=t-8 1 391,851 (31,476) (80,773 25,136 (200) (46,749) 308,500 (5,608) 302,892
BRBRARERERAR TECFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B 2 —F = —#F+=-H =+ —HI FE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Operating activities RETED
Profit before tax B % A1 A 14,034 22,900
Adjustments for: HUTEBEELHE:
Bank interest income RITH B HA (693) (513)
Interest income from advance to a third M—BE=FEHBERWF S
party WA (600) (975)
Interest income from debt instrument at FREMEEK S
fair value through other comprehensive BARBEFEN
income BT AT B A (190) (205)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERIEBETE
equipment 5,968 5,341
Provision for major overhauls EARERE 1,868 757
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HERBRARMESE 359 =
Finance costs BE KA 9,298 4,408
Impairment losses recognised on LTI B IEERN R EBR
— other receivables — H b e R IB 374 1,008
— other financial assets at amortised cost —Z#HER A ENEM T
BE 17 2,242
— debt instrument at fair value through - EREMEZEARSEAAEFE
other comprehensive income MEBIA 2,381 =
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of (BEEHMUR) /MO TFE
inventories (897) 1,058
Loss on redemption of debt instrumentat EEFBEMEEREZ QLB
fair value through other comprehensive ENEBIANEE
income - 9
Loss on disposal on property, plant and HEME  BERZENEE
equipment 14 8
Gain on lease modification HEEBRH KR (10) -
Contribution to defined benefit retirement  535& & Fl iR /R 51 & 4t %
plans 13 466
Operating cash flows before movements in KT & BE & EHATHLE
working capital RERE 31,936 36,500
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,905) (2,062)
Increase in trade receivables E 5 FE W F I L N (366) (72)
Increase in receivables under service R ETHETH
concession arrangements JRE W2 5% TE 4 N (119,279) (13,488)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and B IR K A RE WK IE
other receivables "L/ (&) 10,032 (20,579)
Increase in trade payables E 5 e FRIE I N 3,864 471
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations & K #& FI| & £ )5 (31) (36)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and ~ E {4 2B &
accruals JEETEB RN, OR D) 5,942 (28)
Cash (used in)/generated from RE (), EEXENRS
operations (69,807) 706
Income tax paid BT (10,740) (9,728)
Income tax refunded PG TR B - 1,375
Net cash used in operating activities RETBHFFANRESFE (80,547) (7,647)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GmEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 il 2 —E = —F + - A=+ —HIFE

2022 2021
—ZE_-_C B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Investing activities REEH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEW % - MEKHE (3,943) (3,665)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE - B E MR EH TS T0E
and equipment - 97
Proceeds from redemption of debt %@ﬁ@ﬁ@%ﬁ%”&/ﬁﬁﬁi
instrument at fair value through other MEBTEMMERE
comprehensive income - 1,657
Proceeds from redemption of other financial EEZ#HER AT ENEM SR EE
assets at amortised cost B RT3 1A - 6,027
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits IERE R H BTN - 5,873
Placement of time deposit FATEBER - (12,045)
Withdrawal of time deposit REUE B 17 3% 11,642 =
Net cash outflow of disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARHFE SR H (37,269) =
Interest received 2 F 8 720 650
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFMANEESTE (28,850) (1,408)
Financing activities MEEE
Repayments to related parties ) 2 B 7? B - (28,549)
Repayments of borrowings 15 2 B0 (20,240) (20,240)
Repayments of lease liabilities EBEHEERE (513) (547)
Interest paid ERHE (6,013) (3,295)
New loan from related parties RE Hﬁ% HREFE R 73,131 54,350
New borrowings raised AR 38,000 32,867
Dividends paid B E - (6,333)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1< FE 4% A% A% 3R 4 25 A% - (6,338)
Net cash generated from METHELENE S FHE
financing activities 84,365 21,915
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f‘%
cash equivalents m ),/ R A (25,032) 12,862
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HEEREEEEY 65,054 51,067
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NERXREBHTE (5,411) 1,125
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R+t-ZA=+—-HE2K
December REEEY 34,611 65,054
Represented by: E:
Bank balances and cash WITHEHR IR 34,611 65,054

BRRRERERLH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+ A=+ —HI FE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a close family
member of a director provided a new loan of HK$9,000,000
to the Group. This loan was subsequently assigned to an
independent third party and was included in other borrowings
as at 31 December 2022.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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9,000,000 T ER  ZERH& &
B EZBUE=H IR T
+-A=t—HitAHEMER-



AR N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8t 2 —F - —#+_HA=+—HI FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. On 1
June 2022, the principal place of business of the Company
was changed from Unit 5, 7th Floor, Westlands Centre,
20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong to Unit 2304, 23rd Floor,
Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2022, for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BREWHRELEREIR(EFTA) BSHE R 2 Rt

Amendment to HKFRS 16

—&B®#H

BRIBRIERERARTERAR)
%—Fﬁ&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ% Faai 11 ARVAN: O

ReBERETRAR  ERORES
Hﬁﬁéx%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ A (X)L
Me ARAWMAMPBEED U A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1 1111,
Cayman lIslands e W =& = — F X
A—B ARARAMETELHEMEH
EBERB0RERRFOTESEH
BEABAEFR20MER PR L23E
2804F o

ARBRWEER ARG - & %M‘T
%“TE’JEKEEJJ%ZB’\WE

e MR RERIABE
A

(MBx)5HE -
BB ARRREER

% o

7T
B8

RREEIERMEREEA((F
BMGmEER])

REFEBRHERZEEMERS
ERAERTE

RAEE AR REWRBA
ﬁ%%%ﬁb%&%%?ﬂm
gitfice((EEEMAe
2 CIEFT B AP B HREEL (E
2 _F—A—BRABNTE
MIsRH A %) AR EL A E B4R
F T

\
=
0) 3 T S of 3F

J

~—

U}T‘iﬂi

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Covid 19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

FEREVHREELF165% (BT A) “E—FRNA=ZTHKZCovid-19HEMNEEEE

Amendments to HKAS 16
Use

BB GHENF16HE (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 37
EEBGTERFEITHEUEFTA)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BEEP B HREER (EBETA) H_ZT—NFE
o 3

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds Before Intended
ME BMENREZE — BEARAZAEHRE

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BRUEAH — BTTAEHNZKA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
TEFRAZEBMBERELENNFE

BRBRARERERAR TECFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z —F — —#+ - H=+—Hi F/&

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT

YEAR (Cont’d)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

BRMBHREENETRBREN_F_SFTAR-T -

ZREBRBREERNFEITR(BFIK)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEMBREEANEI0RR
BR G ERF285% (BETF)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 ‘
BB BREERFE6R (BTN

Amendments to HKAS 1

BERGHERNFE IR (BT

Amendme\nts to HKAS 1

BERGHERNFEIR(BFTX)

Amendme\nts to HKAS 1 and HKFRS\Practice Statement 2

%%@@ﬁﬂ%%&é%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
ERBHER(EFA)

Amendme\nts to HKAS 8
BB ERESTRBITK)

Amendments to HKAS 12

RREEIERMEREER(F
AMGwELER]F)

REFHEBRERZEBMERS
HERBETH (#F)

A

B
S R

S SE 1
S

i

ST i
S
18 o
344 B
B %1 &
N e
2R 2 i T
o = s

R
W8 o> v
C BB

£
AHmE

ERfERRERZHITEEMY
BEENRRETE

REBEYE|IEFEM NIIC RME
h*ikZﬁJ%%%%ﬁ%EW
K EAEFT A

Insurance Contracts!

REER A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
\Associate or Joint Venture?

&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂ RBELECHRNEENEN
TE?

Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
ERHENMEERES

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretatlon 5 (20208
it F/\ ’E?m@]i# REUREARBESE 7AERBBI(Z
= 3

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

WERZNOERD ARG
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
SHHENHE

Definition of Accounting Estimates'
githitnes

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Smgle Transaction!

S A ACTIED RE-RPEENAERARABNEERT

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 R-T-_=F—A—Hazz2&HABZ
2023. FEBMEAER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 REEENBERSI 2 ERENEE
determined. BAR A K -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R-ZZE-_NWF-—RA—HBs®z&MBZ
2024, FEHMBER -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8t 2 —F - —#+_HA=+—HI FE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

3.1

RREEIERMEREER(F
BMGWELER]F)

ERfERRERZHITTEME
BEENRRET ()

ARAREFBEIEMAMAE ] &L
EAEEM B REEN K AEER
ARREGEMBERERELEEAY
@,

BEMBERZENERREX
e

FEMEBRZEREE

REMBRRDERBESFOQ
CHEMBAMBRELERHR -
BN METBBREREEFTEH S
RHMBRRAAEFLHHRATL
TRADREFEBRFGORE ZE
AEEEE-

RAMBRRRELRAZLRR
HETIXHEFBRGAAE(RERE
HARBRAREFENE TSR TA)
BRI o

Bl A~ BERAENRES 2
REZAREHE -

BERRERERAT TECCFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+ A=+ —HI FE

3.

3.1

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 8t 2 —F - —#+_HA=+—HI FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

3.

3.2

REMEBRZEREEREX
BB ()

EXEBE

HEVBEHRREEARRARIEARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+ A=+ —HI FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MAMBBEZRUEEREX

154

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont'd)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTEREST IN EXISTING
SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of
CGUs) retained.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION

INPUT METHOD

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs
to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION (Cont’d)

EXISTENCE OF SIGNIFICANT FINANCING COMPONENT

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
time value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the
contract contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in
which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. The Group recognises
interest income during the period between the payment
from customers and the transfer of the associated goods
or services.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION SERVICE OF
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES AND POWER
PLANT FACILITIES

Revenue from provision of construction services of
wastewater treatment facilities and power plant facilities
are derived from long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the services begin. Under
the term of contracts, the Group is contractually required to
perform the services at the customers’ specified sites that
the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

SALES OF BIOFUEL

Sales of biofuel is recognised at the point in time when the
control of the good is transferred to the customer which
generally coincides with delivery and acceptance of the
good sold.

OPERATION INCOME

Operation income related to the income derived from
managing and operating of wastewater treatment facilities
under service concession arrangements. Operation income
is recognised at a point in time.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPUTED INTEREST INCOME ON RECEIVABLES UNDER
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

Imputed interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Imputed
interest income on receivables under service concession
arrangements is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

LEASES
DEFINITION OF A LEASE

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Contd)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Contd)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the

lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2
LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Contd)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

U the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivables, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

3.

3.2

FREMBEHRZEREEREX
Bt B ()

EXEBRE)

REEZENEEEBNMEHRE
B A BRI EB NG (O
BYETHRZEXZHBMIRITE
RER - RMEIR - UINEFIE
MEKBEENZAMBRITEXRESN
BMmE - PUINETIEZRAALBEINEZ
QET@?IE\EBZFZE’&/LEMEZEE

TTEXEHRME - LINEFHERE
ERAFENEEBRBETNTERN
BmHE -

,%ﬂﬁé%ﬁ@”“ﬁglﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂi
AEZERRELHRRNBRAER -

REINGEAMBHRE AEEZE
MEENBEINZRERRNR

TEXMESAEENZ27 8% (A
BT o WA RFIZIE BRI A HIRE

MEXETHRE  RIFEXNZH
AR AEEE  RULBERT
AIRARRXSEAZER - TEAL
MEE X ZR(WA) N REMEEK
ATERIL REAFFAERLFEEE T
Bm(EEERBRT RBN IR E

%) -

REEEINEL (NHEARERE
’;h%ﬂ‘%Zﬁﬁﬁ%” R E ﬁf&%
fﬁ—ﬁ'ﬂ’? SHIEBZHBA

7 4D By ﬁé%&aﬁ%ﬁ/\}fﬁ{a%ﬁ
¥R RSB EEREZHEE
NioEEEE -

BERRERERAT “ECCFER

167



<><>

\

168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+ A=+ —HI FE

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income and net
gains”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plan are recognised as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period. In determining
the present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations
and the related current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods
of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially
higher level of benefit than earlier years, the Group
attributes the benefit on a straight-line basis from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will
lead to no material amount of further benefits under
the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in accumulated losses and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or
loss on settlement is recognised when settlement occurs.
When determining past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, an entity shall remeasure the net defined
benefit liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions, reflecting
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
before and after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, without considering the effect of asset ceiling
(i.e. the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net
defined benefit liability or asset before plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, the Group determines net
interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and
the discount rate used to remeasure such net defined
benefit liability or asset, taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period
resulting from contributions or benefit payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Cont’d)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item. Curtailment
gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before
tax” because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it i